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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of
John Deere Financial India Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of John Deere Financial India Private Limited (“the Company”),
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2020, and the Statement of Profit and Loss (including
other comprehensive income), Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of the significant accounting
policies and other explanatoryinformation.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2020, and profit and other
comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the financial
statements.
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John Deere Financial India Private Limited
Independent Auditor’sReport—31 March 2020 (continued)

Emphasis of matter

As described in Note 26.16 to the financial statements, the extent to which the COVID-19 pandemic
will impact the Company’s financial performance is dependent on future developments, which are
highly uncertain.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matter.

Otherinformation

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Company’s annualreport, but does not
include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude thatthere isa material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

Management's and Board of Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company's Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in
section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs, profit/loss and other comprehensive income, changes in
equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally
acceptedin India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of
the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding ofthe assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring accuracyand completeness of the accounting records, relevant to
the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are
free from material misstatement, whether due tofraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors are responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors
either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to
do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company'’s financial reporting process.
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John Deere Financial India Private Limited
Independent Auditor’sReport—31 March 2020 (continued)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statementsas a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
thatincludes our opinion. Reasonable assuranceis a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement whenit
exists. Misstatements canarise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticismthroughout the audit. We also:

e I|dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive tothose risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting fromerror,
as fraud mayinvolve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internalcontrol.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3){(i) of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness
of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures in the financial statements made by the Management and
Board of Directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attentionin our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosuresare inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are basedon the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate to with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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John Deere Financial India Private Limited
independent Auditor’sReport—31 March 2020 (continued)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

Reporton Other Legaland Regulatory Requirements

1.

As required by the Companies (Auditors Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the

Central Government in terms of section 143 (11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent
applicable.

a)

b)

d)

e)

(A) As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessaryforthe purposes of our audit.

Inour opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

The Balance sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive
income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaidfinancial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under
section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March
2020 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
31 March 2020 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect tothe adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in “Annexure B”.

(B) With respectto the other matterstobe included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with

Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and tothe best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2020 on
its financial position in its financial statements - Refer Note 26.01 to the financial
statements;
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John Deere Financial India Private Limited
Independent Auditor’sReport—31 March 2020 (continued)

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements (continued)

ii. The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting
standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including
derivative contracts-Refer Note 11 to the financial statements;

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferredto the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company;

iv. The disclosures in the financial statements regarding holdings as well as dealings in
specified bank notes during the period from 8 November 2016 to 30 December 2016 have
not been made in these financial statements since they do not pertaintothe financial year
ended 31 March 2020.

(C) With respect to the mattertobe included in the Auditor’s Report under section 197(16):

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions of
Section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the Company as it is a ‘private
limited company’.

For B SR & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No. 116231W/W — 100024

A=

Anant Marwah

Place: New Delhi Partner
Date: 25June 2020 Membership No. 510549
UDIN: 20510549AAAAFI5358
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John Deere Financial India Private Limited
Independent Auditor’s Report—31 March 2020 (continued)

AnnexureAto the Independent Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements

With reference to the Annexure A referredto paragraph 1 of Report on Other Legaland Regulatory
Requirements of the Independent Auditor’s Report to the members of the Company on the financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2020, we report that:

vi.

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

{b) The Company has a program of verification to cover all the items of the fixed assets at
interval of two years, which in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the
Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the program, all fixed assets were
physically verified by the management during the year. According to the information and
explanation given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

{c) According to the information and explanations given to us, and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company does not hold any immovable
properties inthe name of the Company. Thus, paragraph 3(i) (c) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

The Company is a non-banking financial company engaged in lending activities. Accordingly,
it does not hold any physicalinventories. Thus, paragraph 3(ii) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted
any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or other
parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Act. Thus, paragraph
3(iii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company
has not advanced anyloans, given any guarantee or provided any security in connection with
loans to any of its directors or to any person in whom the director is interested. Thus,
provisions of Section 185 are not applicable to the Company. Pursuant to provisions of sub
section 11 of section 186 of the Act, the Company is exempted from provisions of Section
186 of the Act, with respect to the loans given.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted
any deposits from the public to which the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and
the provisions of section 73 to section 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the
rules framedthere under apply.

The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under Section
148 (1) of the Act, for any services rendered by the Company. Thus, paragraph 3(vi) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.
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John Deere Financial India Private Limited
Independent Auditor’s Report—31 March 2020 (continued)

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements (continued)

vii. (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, amounts deducted/accrued in the books of
account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, Income Tax,
Goods and Services Tax and other material statutory dues have generally been regularly
deposited during the year by the Company with the appropriate authorities . As explained
to us, the Company did not have any dues on account of Employees’ State Insurance and

Cess, Duty of Customs and Duty of Excise.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable
in respect of Provident Fund, Income Tax, Goods and Services Tax and other material
statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2020 for a period of more than six months

from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of income
tax, sales tax, service tax, value addedtax, duty of custom, Goods and Services Tax and duty
of excise that have not been deposited on account of dispute except for dues of service tax

as disclosed below:

Name of statute | Nature of the | Amount (INR) Period to which | Forum where the
Dues the amount | dispute is pending
relates
Finance Act, | Service tax on| 4,257,423 2016-2017 Assistant
1994 late interest and Commissioner,
non - sufficient Central GST, Pune
funding charges

vili. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or borrowings to financial institutions, banks or
debenture holders. The Company did not have any outstanding loans or borrowings from

Government during the year.

ix. In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company
has utilized the money raised by way of termloans during the year for the purpose for which

they wereraised.

X.  According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on
the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the year.

xi. The Company is a ‘private limited company” and therefore the provisions of Section 197 read
with schedule V to the Act are not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xi)

of the order is not applicable to the Company.
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John Deere Financial India Private Limited
Independent Auditor’s Report—31 March 2020 (continued)

Annexure Ato the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements (continued)

xii. In our opinion and according to information and explanations given to us, the Company is
not a Nidhi Company as per the Act. Thus, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to

the Company.

xiii. The Company is a ‘private limited company’ and therefore the provisions of section 177 of
the Act are not applicable to the Company. According to the information and explanations
given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the Company, the
transactions with related parties are in compliance with section 188 of the Act and the
details, as required by the applicable accounting standards have been disclosed in the

financial statements.

xiv. According to information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has made a preferential allotment of shares during
the year. Further the Company has complied with the requirements of section 62 of the Act
and the amounts raised have been used for the purpose for which the funds were raised.
The Company has not made any private placement of shares or fully or partially convertible

debentures during the year.

xv. According to information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with
directors or persons connected with him. Thus, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable

to the Company.

xvi. The Company is required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India

Act, 1934 and it has obtained certificate of registration dated 6 September 2012.

For B SR & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm registration number: 116231W/W-100024

‘-""'P - ‘
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Anant Marwah

Place: New Delhi

Date: 25 June 2020 Membership no.: 510549
UDIN: 20510549AAAAFI5358
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date on the
Financial Statements of John Deere Financial India Private Limited

Report on the Intemal Financial Controls under clause (i) of sub - section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”)

(Referred to in paragraph 2 (A) (f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
section of ourreport ofeven date)

Opinion

We have audited internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of John Deere
Financial India Private Limited (“the Company”)as of 31 March 2020 in conjunction with our audit of
the financial statements of the Company for the yearended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial control
system with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating
effectively as at 31 March 2020, based on the internal control with reference to financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit of the Internal Financial Control Over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note”)issued by the Institute if Chartered Accountant of India (“ICAI").

Emphasis of matter

As described in Emphasis of Matter paragraph of our report to the financial statements, the extent
to which the COVID-19 pandemic will have an impact on the Company’s internal financial controls
with reference to the financial statements is dependent on future developments, which are highly
uncertain.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Control

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal control with reference to financial statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal controf stated
in Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors,
the accuracy and completeness of accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under
section 143 (10) of the
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Auditor’s Responsibility (continued)

Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements. Those Standards and Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and

perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial control system with reference to financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included
obtaining an understanding of such internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal
control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial control with reference to financial
statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controlwith reference to Financial Statements

A Company’sinternal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation
of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A Company’s internal financial control with reference to financial statements includes
those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessaryto permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.
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Inherent Limitation ofInternal Financial Controlwith reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of
any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future
periods are subject to the risk that the financial control with reference to financial statements may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

For BSR & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 116231W/W-100024

»Z

Anant Marwah
Place: New Delhi Partner
Date: 25 June 2020 Membership no.: 510549

UDIN: 20510549AAAAFIS358



John Deere Financial India Private Limited
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020

T 1

Rs. intakhs
, —
j Particulars Note No. As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019 As at April 1, 2018
T?I]' Tassers =
|
| L |Financial Assets
| [}
! | ] {3) Cash and cash equivaients 4 8,024 42 7,625.05 1,749.11
| {b] Bank balance other than (a) above 5 053 0.63 057
| {c) Recewvables Trade recewables 6 266.44 189.30 9923
| td) toans 7 233,045 48 167,609.22 117,851.72
I, (o) Other hinancial assets 8 6662 37.83 3511
| [ | Total Financial assets 241,401.55 175,866.01 | 115,735.75
[ 2 |Nen-financlal Assets
]
| | ta) currentrax (net) ' 415.16 23471 3243
| (b) Deferred tax assels [net) 2611 2,111.36 1,327 11 1,02871
’ {c) Propenty, Pant and Ecuipment 9(a) 186.20 132.76 91.98
| (d}) Cavital work-iztprogress - 3672 135 2,11
{e} Right of Use Assets 9 (b} 260.05 . |
{f} Otker non linancial nssets 10 71112 347,55 197.67
Total Non-financial assets 3,720.61 2,043 48 1.352.90
T Tatal Assets 245,124.16 177,509.49 121,088.65
2] UABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liatilines
1 |Financial Habilities
{a) Derivative financal Instrument 1 154.45
(b) Payables 12
(i) Trade payables
-total autstanding dues of micro enterpnses and - 0ol 108 3.00
small enterpnses :
-total outstanding dues of ¢reditors other than 1,143.59 998 1(;1 575139
micro enterprises and small enterprises 1
{c} Debtsecurities 13 109,119.70 80.622.98
{d) Borrowings (Other than Debt sezurities) 14 85,507.90 £4,744.85 87,561.92
| | (e} tease liatilities - 270.98 .
i () Other financiai liakihtees 15 467.28 505 57 37212
: Total Financial liabilitics 196,663.91 136,872.68 _’83,51 2,43,
2 |Non-financial tiabilities |
{a} Currert taxiiabitites {ne1) - 424 152
{b) Provisions 16 554,11 452 57 306 50
{¢c} Other Non linancial lizh:lities 17 98.95 73.76 48,16
Total Non financial liabilities 653,06 532.57 356.18
3|eQuITy
{a) Equity Share capital 18 39,390.00 74,390.00 29,390.00
{b) Qthar Equity 19 . l.dl'},lﬁl 51142 2.830.04
Total Equity 42,807.19 | 40,104.24 32,220.04
1 Total Liabilitles and Equity 245.124.16 177,509.49 121,088.65
|
!_5.gniht.lm accounting golicies 2
|Notes fo the finarcial szatements 1-26 46
| A5 per our report of even date altached
.f-or 8 S R & Associates LLP For and on behall of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants lohin Doere Financial india Privale Linvited
Firim Reg No 116231W/W.100024 CIN, UE5923PN20119TC141149
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Managing Director
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John Deere Financlal India Private Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2020

- Rs. in Lakhs
\ For the year ended For the year ended
Particul N No.
artedtars ote No 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
I |Revenue from operations 20
(3} Interest income 32,069 00 23,050.24
(b) Other operating income 208.97 145.77
Total Revenue from operations 3_2_,'2-77.97 23,196.01
Il |Otherincome 21 816.22 282.53
Wl |Total Income {I+1) 33,094,19 23,478.54
IV |Expenses
(a) Finance cost 22 14,397.14 10,222.89
(b) Net loss on fair value changes on financial instruments 26.14 154.45 -
(¢} Impairment on financial Instruments 23 3,923.99 1,490.11
(d) Employee benefits expense 24 4,196.06 3,262.05
{e) Depreciation and amortization expense 9 205.12 58.25
{f) Other expenses 25 6,827.46 4,387.36
V |Total expenses 29,704.22 19,420.66
Vi |Profit before tax (lll-V) 3,389.97 4,057.88
Vil |Tax expense:
Current tax 26.11 1,641.00 1,434.21
Deferred tax 26.11 (784.25) {298.40)
VIl |Profit for the year (VI - VIi) 2,533.22 2,922.07
IX |Other comprehensive income
(A) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
{i) Remeasurement of Defined benefit liability/(asset) 26.04 6.32 {53.43)
(li)income tax relating to [tems that will not be reclassified to profit or lass 26.11 (1.59) 15.56
Total Other Comprehensive Income/{Loss) 4.73 (37.87)
X |Total Comprehensive Income {VII +1X) 2,537.95 2,884.20
% |Earnings per equity share (of Rs.10 each)
Baslc and Diluted (Amount in Rs.) 26.08 0.73 0.99
Significant accounting policies 2
Notes to the financial statements 1-26.46

s per our repoart of even date attached

For BS R & Assaciates LL®
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 116231W/W-100024

(-

Anant Marwah
Partner
Membership No. 510549

UDIN '205\05‘161 NGGUAE 535¢%

Place : New Deihi

Date 115 T\)!\JE %?/‘D

“ Abhay Dhokte

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
John Deere Financial India Private Limited
CIN: U65923PN2011PTC141149

% e
/-‘.\\\'\ g

Managing Director
(DIN UBA81252)

& 01(;9“
@-— .
Vaishiavi Suratwila
Company Secretary

Chief Financial Officer

Place : Pune . =
Date . 25 JUNL 2G 20




John Deere Financial India Private Limited
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March 2020

L. Operating Activitics
Profit before tax
Adjustments for;
Depreciation and amortization
Interest income on loans
Interest Income on fixed deposits
Finance cost
Insurance claim recewved
{Profit) / loss on sale of assets
Unrealired forex loss on borrowings
Unrealized farex loss an trade payables
Unrcalized fcrex loss on derivative instrument
Impairment on linancigl instruments

Cash {nflow from interest on Joans
Cash outflow towards finance cost

Waorking caphal changes

Adjusy 5 for
{Increase) / Decreasa in Loans
{Increase} / Decrease in Other Financial Assets
{Increase} / Decrease in Non-Financial Asscts
{Increase) / Decrease in Trade Receivables
Increase / (Decrease} in Provislon
Increase / {Decrease) in Trade and Other payables
Increase / (Decrease) in Other Financial Liabilities
Increase § (Decrease) in Other Non- Financial Liabilities

Taxes paid
Net Cash used In Operating actlvities (A)

1l Investing activities
Purchase of fixcd assets
Insurance claim received
Interest received

Net cash used In Investing activities {B)

1l Financing activities

Prozeeds from Izsue of skare capital

rogeeds from Securities premium

Proceeds from Borrowings (other than debt securities)
Procaeds from Debt Securities

Repayment of Borrowings (other than debt securit:es)
Regaymaent of Debt Securities

Praenedt from Inter corporate deposits

Repayment of Inter corporate deposits

Hepayment of lease habilities

Not cash generated from Financing activities (€}

Net Increase/[decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (4+B-C)
Cash ang cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash Generated from Opceratlon before working capital changes

Cash and cash squlvalents at the end of the year®

Notes:

* Comprises:

{a] Remittance i transit {Refer note 4)

b Balances with bank {Refer note 4)
(1) In current accounts

Rs. In
Particulars For the year ended For \he year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
3,38997 4,057.88
20513 5825
{32,069.00) (23,050.24)
{41.72) (33.98)
14,422 47 10,222,89
(1.89) {570}
1,13 155
65,60
16 60
154,45 {11.05}
3,923.99 1,490.11
{9,933.27) {7,265.29}
30,671.06 21,200.99
{14,195.06) (9.323 12}
6,538.73 5,112 58
{64,038.31) (48,408 24)
{28.79) 3,504.36
(363.57) {149 88)
(72.15) (90 06}
(3.818.14) (1,379.90)
127.83 431.82
(38.29) 133.45
25.19 25.60
(61,672.50] (40,420.28)
(1,827.28) 11,633.76)
(63,499.78) {42,054.04)
(166.70} (99.82)
1.89 0,70
41.725 {3,873.14}
1123.06) 13,972.26}
5,000.00 5,000.00
16500
155.249.85 157,676.99
58,476 13 169,686,24
{124,730.00) (190.456.99)
{30,000,00) (90,000.00)
77,000.00 73,976.99
{77,000.00) (73.976.99}
1142.76) .
64,018.21 $1,906.24
587994
8.024.42
22.18 429
8.002.24 1.624.16
8,024.92 7.629.0%
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Chartered Accountants
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O

Anant Marwah
Membership No $10549

Place Now [l

e

w90 510 SYGANK FI S35

For anc on behalf of the Board of Directors
John Deere Financial India Private Limited

CiN: UB5923PN2011PTC241149

-\
NG

‘Abhay Dhokte
Managing Cirector
(01N 08481252)

mm:’

Company Secreta:y

Place - Mo

Dae A5 -_JUF*J ?_Z(- e

Gidish Sivgfamaktiihnan
Chief Firancial Ofticer

Piace : Pune i
|

Date )\’J“‘"C 2




John Deere Financial India Private Limited

Statement of Changes in Equity for year ended 31 March 2020

a. Equity share capital

Rs. in Lakhs
Particulars Rs.
Balance at April 1, 2018 29,390.00
Changes in equity share capital during the year 5.000.00
Balance at March 31, 2019 34,390.00
Changes in equily share capital during the year 5,000.00
Balance at March 21, 2020 39,390.00 |

b. Other equity

Rs. in Lakhs
Reserves and Surplus Items of OCI Total other
Particulars Securities Statutory Retalned Remeasurement equity
Premium Reserve earnings of net defined
benefit plans
Balance at April 1, 2018 777.04 2,053.00 - 2,830.04
Profit for the year - 2,922.07 2,922,07
Other comp‘rehensive income/ (loss) for the . . ) (37.87) (37.87)
year, net of income tax
Total comprehensive income/ {loss) for the year - 2,922.07 (37.87) 2,884.20
Transfer to Statutory Reserve } 447.91 {447.91)
Balance at March 31, 2019 1,224.95 _4.527.16 (37.87) 5,714.24
Profit for the year - 2,533.22 2,533.22
Other comprehensive income for the year, net
of income tax - . - 1.73 473
Total comprehensive income for the year - - 2,533.22 4.73 2,537.95
Premium on issue of Equity Shares 165.00 - - 165.00
Transfer to Statutory Reserves - 508.00 (508.00) -
Balance at March 31, 2020 165.00 1,732.95 6,552.38 (33.14) 8,417.19

* The Statutory reserve under 45 IC are based on the profit computed under the previous GAAP as of 31st March 2019 and

April 2018

For B S R & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 116231W/W-100024

N

Anant Marwah
Partner
Membership No. 510549

tf\\:i\ ”
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
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Managing Director Digdetor
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Company Secretary Chief Financial Qfficer
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John Deere Financial India Private Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements

1.

2;

Corporate Information

John Deere Financial India Private Limited {the Company) was incorporated on 21 October 2011,
The Company is registered with the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) as a Non-deposit taking Non-
Banking Finaricial Company (‘NBFC') as defined under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
(RBI} Act, 1934, holding a Certificate of Registration from the Reserve Bank of India {“RB|”) dated
6 September, 2012,

The principal business of the Company is providing finance for the purchase of farm equipment
manufactured, sold and traded by John Deere India Private Limited and for the construction
equipment manufactured and sold by Wirtgen india Private Limited.

John Deere Financial India Private Limited has become a Systemically Important Non- Deposit
taking Non-Banking Finangcial Company with effect from: June. 2016, vide Master Direction DNBR.
PD. 008/03.10.119/2016-17.dated 01 September 2016 updated as on 17 February 2020 issued by
the Reserve Bank of India (RBI).

The registered office of the Company is located at Tower 14, Magarpatta City, Hadapsar, Pune
India,

Significant Accounting Policies

2.1 Statement of compliance and basis for preparation and presentation of financial statements

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Indian
Accounting Standards as per the Companies (Indian Accounting' Standards) Rufes 2015 as
amended and notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 {“the Act”), in conformity
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India and other relevant provisions of the Act.
Any application guidance/ clarifications/ directions issued by RBI or other regulators are
implemented as and when they are issued/ applicable,

Up to the year ended 31 March 2019, the Company prepared its financial statements in
accordance with the requirements of previous Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in India
(“Indian GAAP”) under the historical cost convention as a going concern and on accrual basis,
unfess otherwise stated, and in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the
Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”} read
with rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014 (as amended), prudential norms for income
recognition, assets classification and provisioning for non-performing assets as well as
contingency provision for standard asséts as prescribed by The Reserve Bank of India (RBI) for
NBFCs.

These are the Company’s first financial statement prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (‘Ind AS’) financial statements. The company has adopted Ind AS from April 1, 2019
with effective transition date as April 1, 2018 (transition date). Refer note 3 for the details of first:
time adoption exemptions availed by the Company. An explanation of how the transition to Ind
AS has affected the previously reported financial position, financial performance and cash flows
of the Company is provided in Note no 3.



John Deere Financial India Private Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements

2.2 Basis for measurement. of financial statements:

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain financial
assets and liabilities (including derivative financial instruments) that are measured at fair value st
the end of each reporting period,

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether
that price is directly observable or estimated using-dnother valuation technique. In estimating the
fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company takes into account the characteristics of the asset
or liability if market participants would take those characteristics inte account when pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement dates

2.3 Presentation of financial statements

The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss and Statement of changes in Equity are prepared
and presented in the format prescribéd in the Division il of Sehedule Il to the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”) The Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared and presented as per the
requirements of ind AS. Amounts in the financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees in
Lakh.

2.4 Use of Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements, in cefiformity with IND AS; requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
(including contingent liability) at the date of the financial statenients and the reported amounts
of revenues and expenses during the year. Management believes that the estimates used in
preparation of the financial statements are prudent and reasonable. Future results could differ
due to these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on:an ongaing basis.
Revision to accounting estimates and the difference between actual results are recognized in the
periads in which the estimate is revised, or the results are known/materialize.

In particular, information about significant areas of estimation‘that have most significant effect
on amounts recognized in the financial statements are given below:

i Note 2.5 — Fair value measurement

ii. Note 2.9 — impairment of financial instruments based on expected credit losses
il Note 2.15 - measurement of assets and obligations for defined benefit ptans

iv. Neote 2.19 - recognition of deferred tax assets

V. Note 2.20 — measurement of pravision and contingencies

vi, Note 26,01 - Disclosure of contingent liabilities



John Deere Financial India Private Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements

® &

2.5 Measurement of Fair Values

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorized into Leve!
1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable
and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are
described as follows:

i. Level 1 inputs are gquoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date;

ii. Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than guoted prices included within Level 1, that are
observable for the asset o liability, either directly or indirectly; and

iii. Level 3 inputs-are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

2.6 Revenue Recognition.

Interest income is recognized using the effective interest method. The effective interest rate (EIR)
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash flows through the expected life of the
financial instrument to thie gross carrying amount of the financial asset. The calculation of the EIR
includes all fees paid or received that are incremental and directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of a financial asset.

The interest income is calculated by applying the EIR to the gross carrying amount of non-credit
impaired financial assets (i.e. at the amortized cost of the financial asset before adjusting for any
expected credit loss allowance). For crédit-impaired financial assets: the interest income is
calculated by applying the EIR to the amortized cost of the credit-impaired financial assets {i.e. at
the amortized cost of the financial asset after adjusting for any expected credit loss allowance
{ECLs}. The Company assesses the collectability of the interest on credit impaired assets at each
reporting date. Based on the outcome of such assessment, the Interest income accrued on credit
impaired financial assets are either accounted for as income or written off ds per the write off
policy of the Company.

Management fees income are the charges for the services provided during the year on cost plus
mark up as per the service agreement.

2.7 Finance Cost

Finance costs include interest expense computed by applying the effective interest rate on
respective financial instrufments measured at Amortized ¢ost. Financial instruments include bank
term loans, non-convertible debentures, commercial papers, exchange differerices arising frem
foreign curréncy borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the interest cost.
Finance costs are charged to the Statement of profit and loss.

&?/



John Decre Financial India Private Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements

2.8 Leases:

The Company evaluates if an arrangement qualifies to be a lease as per the requirements of
Ind AS°116. identificatian of a lease requires significant judgment, The Company uses significant
judgement in assessing the |ease term (including anticipated renewals) and the applicable
discount rate.

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease, together
with both periods covered by an option to extend ‘the lease if the Company is reasonably
certain to exercise that option; and periods covered by an option to terminate the Jease if the
Company is reasonably certain not to exercise that option.

According to ITFG issued by ICA), where lease agreement can be extended by lessee only with
the consent of lessor, the lessee does not have the right to use the asset beyond the non-
cancellable period. Based on which the Campany.restricts [ease term to Agreement period and
cannot extend it further to reasonably certain peried for which there is no agreement as of
NOw,

Acontract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period in exchange for consideration.

The Company accounts for each lease component within the contract as a lease separately from
non-fease comporents of the contract.

Transitionto Ind AS 116

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) through Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Amendment Rules, 2019 and Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Second Amendment
Rules, has notified Ind AS 116 Leases which replaces the existing lease standard, ind AS 17 jeases,
and other interpretations. Ind AS 116 sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement,
presentation and disclosure of leases for both lessees and lessors. [t introduces a single, on-
balance sheet |ease accounting model for fessees.

Three transition approaches specified under Ind AS 116;

i Full Retrospective Approach

i, Modified retraspective approach

fii. Modified retrospective approach 1l

The Company has adopted the modified retrospective approach, ROU Asset & liability have
calculated from 1% April 2019 onwards and value of opening ROU Assets & liability is same under
this approach.



John Deere Financial India Private Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements

2.8 Leases (continued)

Company as a lessee
Operating leases

For transition, the Company has elected to apply the requirements of Ind AS 116 to all leases. The
Company has also used the practical expedient provided by the standard when applying Ind AS
116 to leases previously classified as operating leases under Ind AS 17 and therefore we have done
re-assessment for all leases which are live as on 1st April 2019,

On transition, the Company recognized a right to use asset for all leases which are live as on 1st
April 2019 and if any leases added newly during the year we have considered as additional ROU
asset during the year. Lease liability measured at the present value of the remaining fease
payments. The right-of-use asset is recognized at its catrying amount asif the standard had béen
applied for remaining period of the lease, ROU assets recognized of INR 353.34 Lakhs and a
carresporiding lease liability of INR 353.34 Lakhs has been recognized. The lease payments for
operating leases as per Ind AS 17 - Leases, were earlier reported under cash flow from operating
activities.

On application of Ind AS 116, the nature of expenses has changed fram lease rent in previous
periods to depreciation cost: for the right-to-use asset, and:finance cost for interest accrued on
fease liability.

2.9 Financial Instruments:

@‘f/

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized in the Company’s balance sheet on
settlement date when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Recognized financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction
costs and revenues that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities {other than financial assets and financial liabilities at FVTPL) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial Liabilities, as appropriate, oninitial
recognition. Transaction costs and revenues directly attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognized immediately in the Statement of Profit or
Loss.

If the transaction price differs from fair value at initial recognition, the Company will account far
such difference as follows:

i If fair value is evidenced by a quoted price in an active market for an identical asset or
liability or based on a valuation technique that uses only data from ohservable markets,
then the difference is recognized in profit or [oss on initial recognition {i.e. day 1 profit or
loss);

ii. In all other cases, the fair value will be adjusted to bring it in line with the transaction
price (i.e. day 1 profit or loss will be deferred by including it in the initial carrying amount
of the asset or liability).



John Deere Financial India Private Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements

2.9 Financial Instruments (continued)

After initial recognition, the deferréd gain or loss will be released to profit or loss on a rational
basis, only to the extent that it arises from a change in a factor (including time) that market
participants would consider when pricing the asset or liability:

Financial assets

Classification
On initial recognition, depending on the Comgany’s business model for managing the financial
assets and its contractual cash flow characteristics, a financial asset is classified as measured at;

i. Amaortized cost;
ii. Fair value through other cempiehensive income (FVTOCI); or
iii. Fair value through profit and less (FVTPL).

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial asset is recognized on trade date initially at cost of acquisition net of transaction cost
and income that is attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Cost equates the fairvalue
on acquisition. Financial asset measured at amartized cost and Financial assets measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income is presented at gross carrying value in the Financial
statements.

Assessment of Business model

The Company is required to classify financial assets as subsequently measured at amortized cost,
fair value through other comprehensive income or fair value through prafit or loss on the basis of
both:

i The entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and
ii. The contractua) cash flow eharacteristics of the financial asset.

An assessment of the applicable business model for managing financial assets was carried out for
the classification of a financial assét, The Company is primarily in the business of providing retail
foans to its end customers. The business model assessment is performed at a higher level of
aggregation rather than on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if both of the following conditions are met:

i business model objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash
flows and

i, the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest {SPP1) on the principal amount.

As the Company is in the business of retail loans the financial asset gives rise on cash flows that

are solely payments of interest and principal. The Company’s business model refers to how the
Company manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows. That is, the business model

o



John Deere Financial India Private Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements

2.9

Finantial Instruments {continued)

determines whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling financial
assets or both,

Financial asset at amortized cost

Amortized cost of financial asset is calculated by taking into account any discount ar premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR (Effective Interest Rates). For the
purpose of SPPI (Solely payment of Principal and Interest) test, principal is the fair value of the
financial asset at initial recognition. That principal amount may change over the life of the financial
asset {e.g. if thére are repayments of principal). Contractual cash flows that do not introduce
exposure to risks or volatility in the contractual cash flows on account of changes such as equity
prices or commodity prices and are related to a basic lending arrangement, de give rise to SPPI.
An originated or an acquired financial asset can be a basic lending arrangement irrespective of
whether it is a loan in its legal form. The EIR amortization is included in findnce income in the
profit and loss statement, The losses arising from impairment are recognized in the profit and loss
statemenit.

Accordingly, the Company measures bank balances, Joans, trade receivables and: other financial
instruments at amortized cost.

The ‘amortized cost” of a financial asset or financial liability is the amount at which the financial
asset or financial liability is measured on initial recognition minus the principal repayments, plus
OfF minus the cumulative amortization using the effective interest méthod of any difference
between that initial amount and the maturity amount and, for financial assets, adjusted for any
expected credit loss allowance.

Unamortized transaction cost and incomes and impairment allowance on Financial asset is
included in the under the head “Loans”. The ‘gross carrying amount of a financial asset’ is the
amartized cost of a finanicial asset before adjusting for any expected credit Joss allowance.

Financial asset at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI)

After initial measurement; basis assessment of the business model as "Contractual cash flows of
Asset collected through hoid and sell model and SPPI"; such financial assets are classified to be
measured at FVOCI. Contractual cash flows that do introduce exposure to risks or volatility in the
contractual cash flows due to changes such as equity prices or commodity pfices and are
unrelated to a basic lending arrangement, do not give rise to SPPI.

The EIR amortization is included in finance income in the profit and loss statement. The losses
arising from impairment are recognized in the profit and loss statement. The carrying value of the
financial asset is fair valued by discounting the contractual cash flows over contractual tenure
basis the iriternal rate of return of a new similar asset originated in the month of reporting and
such unrealized gain/loss is recorded in other comprehensive income (OCl}. Where such a similar
product is not originated in the month of reparting, the closest product origination is used as a
proxy, Upon sale of the financial asset, actual the gain/loss realized is recorded in the profit and

'
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2.9

Financial Instruments (continued}

loss statement and the unrealized/gain losses fecorded in OCl are recycled to the statement of
profit and loss.

Financial asset at fair value through profit and loss {(FVTPL)

Financial asset, which does not meet the criteria for categorization at amortized cost or FVQC|, is
classified as at FVTPL. In addition, the Company may elect to classify a financial asset, which
otherwise meets amortized cost or FVOC] criteria, as FVTPL. However, such election is allowed
only if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition Inconsistency (referred to as
‘accounting mismatch’). Financial assets included within the FVTPL category are measured. at fair
value with all changes recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Réclassifications within classes of financial 4ssets

A change in the business model would lead to a prospective re-classification of the financial asset
and dccordingly the measurement principles applicable to the new classification will be applied.
During the current financial year and previous accounting period there was no change in the
business madel under which the Company holds financial assets and thierefore #io reclassifications
were made.

Impairment of Financial Asset

impairment Approach

In accordance with Ind AS 109, an entity shall recognize a loss allowance for expected credit losses
on a financial asset that is measured for a contract asset or a loan commitment and a financial
guarantee contract to which the impairment requirements apply.

An entity shall measure the loss allowance for a-financial instrument at an amount equal to the
lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on that financial instrument has increased

significantly since initial recognition.

Where the credit risk has not increased significantly, the Company shall measure the loss
allowance equal to 12- month expected credit losses.

Adoption of ECL

John Deere Financial has adopted expected credit losses on its portfolio based on the forward-
fooking information and historical data for all its financjal assets.

The measurement of ECL is calculated using three main components:
i. Probability of default (PD)

ii. Loss given default (LGD) and

iii. Exposure at default (EAD).

The stage defined by the Company are as given below

W
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2.9

Financial instruments (continued)

i. Stage 1: 0-29 days
ii. Stage 2: 30-89 days:
if. Stage 3: 90 days and above

The measurement of all expected credit losses for financial assets held at the reporting date based
on historical experience, current conditions and reasonable and supportable forecasts. The
measurement of EGL involves increased complexity and judgement, including estimation of PDs,
LGD, & range of unbiased future economic scenarios, estimaticn of expected lives, and estimation
of EAD and assessing significant increases in credit risk.

Assessment of sighificant increase in credit risk:

The credit risk on a financial asset of the Company are assumed to have increased significantly
since initial recognition when contractual payments are more than 30 days past due, Accordingly,
the financial assets shall be classified as Stage 2, based on the quantitative as well as qualitative
factors. This analysis includes the identification and calibration of relatiohships between changes
in default rates and changes in key macro-economic factors,

Key macro-economic indicators include but is not limited to;
i Food output

if. Rainfall

iii. Lending interest rate

Technigues for determining LGD:

LGD is the magnitude of the likely lass if theré is a default. The Company estimates LGD
parameters based on the history of recovery rates against defaulted counterparties. The LGD
models consider the cash flow received, assets received in lieu of settlement of loan and collateral
available far subsequent recovery that is integral to the financia) asset.

As Company has cbserved challenges in the resolution of defaulted accounts with aging more
than one year and accordingly a higher LGD estimate is applied assuming nil recoveries towards
such accounts where recovery is hot made over a period of time.

The Company has in recently entered into the business of financing of Road Construction
equipment and hence there is limited historical data available to determine the quality of
portfolio. Reasonable estimates will be applied to determine the provisioning for the road
construction portfolio on case to case basis. Currently the Company is applying the provisioning
percentage considering the total portfolio including agriculture and road construction.

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortized cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is
classified as at EVTPL if it is classified as held-for trading or it is a derivative or it is designated as

such on initial recognition. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost
using the effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are

oy
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2.9

2.10

2.11

2.12

Financial Instruments {continued)

recognized in Statement of profit and loss, Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognized in
Statement of profit and loss.

Derecognition

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows fram
the financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a
transaction in which substantially all of the.risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset
are transferred or in which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks
and rewards of ownership and does not retain control of the financial asset. If the Company enters
into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognized on its balance sheet but retains either all
or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred-asséts, the transferred assets are
not derecognized.

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation in respect of the liability is discharged,
cancelled or expires. The difference between the carrying valie of the financial liability and the
cohsideration paid is recognized in Statement of profit and loss,

Derivative financial instruments

The Conmipany enterfs into derivative financial instruments, primarily foreign exchange forward
contracts, to manage its horrowing exposure to foreign exchange. Derivatives are initially
recognized at fair value at the date the contracts are entered into and are subsequéently
remeasured to their fair value at the end of each reporting period. The resulting gain/loss is
recognized in Statément of profit and loss.

Repossessed assets

In the normal course of business, the Company repossess assets in its loan porifolio to settle
outstanding debt and does not change ownership title. Any surplus funds are returned to the
custorners/ obligors. As a result of this practice, the assets / properties under legal repossession
processes are not separately recorded on the balance shéet.

Write offs

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when there is no realistic prospact of
further recovery, This is generally the case when the Company determines that the debtor/
borrower does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flaws to
repay the amounts subject to the write-off. However, financial assets that are written off could still
be subject to enforcement activities under the Company's recovery procedures, taking into account
legal advice where appropriate. Any recoveries made are recognized in Statement of profit and
toss.

P
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2.13  Property, plant and equipment and Other intangible assets:

Property, plant and equipment

Tangible

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost of acquisition less accumulated
depreciation/amartization less accumulated impairment, if ariy. The cost of fixed assets
comprises its purchase price net of any trade discounts and rebates, any import duties and other
taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable from the tax authorities), any directly
attributable expenditure on making the asset ready for its intended use, and interest ot
borrowings attributable to acquisition of qualifying fixed assets up to thé date the asset is ready
for its intended use.

Capital Work-in-progress:

Capital work-in-progress for production, supply of administrative purposes is carried at cost less
accumulated impairment loss, if any, uritil construction and installation are comiplete, and the
asset is ready for its intended use,

Depreciation and Amortization:

Depreciation is recoghized {(other than on capital work-in-progress) on a straight-line basis over
the estimated useful lives of assets. Depreciation on assets acquired/ purchased, sold/discarded
during the year is provided on a pro-rata basis from the date of each addition till the date of
sale/retirement. The estimated useful lives of assets are stated below:

Particulars Useful Life
(in years)
Furniture and Fixtures 8
Computer and Networking Equipment 3-5 N

*Estimated useful life of assets consistent with thé useful life specified in the Schedule Il
of the Companies Act, 2013.

Fixed assets individually costing Rs. 10,000 or less depreciated fully in the year of acquisition
except tahlets.

The economic useful lives of assets are assessed based on a technical evaluation, taking into
account the nature of assets, the estimated usage of assets, the operating conditions of the assets,
past history of replacement, anticipated technological changes, maintenance history, etc. The
estimated useful life is reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with effect of any change in
estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

Where the cost of part of the asset is significant to the total cost of the assets and the useful life
of that part is different from the useful of the remaining asset, useful life of that significant part
is determined separately. Depreciation of such significant part, if any, is based on the useful life
of that part.

v
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2,13

Property, plant and equipment and Other intangible assets:
Impairment of fixed assets

At the end of each year, the management reviews the carrying values of assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered impairment loss. [If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated to determine the extent, ifany,
of the impairment loss. Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of individual
asset, the management estimates the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which
the asset belongs. Intangible assets are also tested for impairment every financial year even if
there is no indication that the asset is impaired.

If the recoverable amount of an asset of cash generating unit is estimated to be less than the
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset or the cash generating unit is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognized immediately in the Statement of Profit
and Loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset. of cash
generating unit is increased to the révised estimate of a recoverable amount, not exceeding the
carrying amount that would have been determined had na impairment loss been recogrized for
the asset or cash generating unit in prior years. A reversal of impairment loss is recognized
immediately in the Statement of Profit and Less.

Derecognition of assets

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset, Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, pfant and equipment, determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and thie carrying amount of the asset, is recognized in
the Statement of Profit or Loss,

For transition to Ind AS,; the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its
property, plant and equipment recognized as at April 1, 2018 (transition date) measured as per
the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost as of the transition date,

2.14  Cash and cash equivalents:

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand and unencumbered, highly liquid bank and
other balances (with original maturity of three months or less) that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

2,15 Employee Benefits;

@9‘*’

Short-term Employee Benefits:

A liahility is recognized for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries in
the period in which the related setvice is rendered at the undiscounted amount of the benefit
that is expected to be paid in exchange for that service.

»
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2.15

Employee Benefits:

Other long-term employee benefits

The liability for earned leave is not expected to be settled wholly within twelve months after
the end of the period in which the employees rendér the related sefviées. They are therefore
measured as the present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services
provided by employees up to the end of the reporting period using the projected unit credit
method with actuarial valuations being carried out at each Balance Sheet date. The benefits
are discounted using the market yields at the end of the reporting periad that have terms
approximating té the terms of the related obligation. Re-measuréments as a result of
experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions:are recognized in Statement of
profit and loss.

Share based payment transactions

Cash settled share based payments: The fair value of the amount payable to employees in
respect of Stock Options and Stock Appreciation Rights (SARS) which are settled in cash, is
recognized asan expense with a corresponding increase in liabilities, over the period that the
employees unconditicnally become entitled to the payment. The liability is re-measured at
each reporting date and at settlement date based on the fair value of the stock. Any changes
ih the fair value of the liability are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

i, Defined contribution plans

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are recognized as an expense when
the employees have rendered the service entitling them 1o the contribution,

Provident fund: The employees of the Company are entitled to receive benefits in respect of
provident fund, a defined contribution plan, in which both employees and the Company make
monthly contributions at a specified percentage of the covered employees’ salary, The
contributions as specified under the law are made to the provident fund and pension fund
administered by the Regional Provident Fund Commissioner, The Company recognizes such
contributions as an expense when incurred.

ii. Defined beriefit plans

For defined benefit retirement plans, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the
projected unit credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at the end of each
annual reporting periad. Re-measurements, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect
of changes to asset ceiling (if applicable) and the return on plan assets {excluding net interest),
is recognized in other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur. Re-
measurements recognized in other comprehensive income is reflected immediately in retained
earnings and is not reclassified to Statement of profit and loss. Past sérvice cost is recognized
in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period of plan amendment.

”
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2,15 Employee Benefits (contined)

2.16

Defined benefit costs comprising service cost {(including current and pastservice cost and gains
and losses on curtailments and settlements) and net interest expense or income is recognized
in Statement of profit and loss.

The defined benefit obligation recognized in.the Balance Sheet represents the actual deficit or
surplus in the Company's defined henefit plans. Any surplus resulting from this calculation is
limited to the present value of any economic beriefits available in the form of refunds from the
plans or reductions in future contributions to the plans.

Gratuity:

The Company has an obligation towards gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan covering
eligible employees. The plan provides for a lump sum payment to vested employees at
retiremerit, death while in employment or on. termjnation of employment of an amount
equivalent to 15/26 days salary payable for each comipleted year of service. Vesting occurs
upon completion of five years of service: The'Campany makes annual contributions to gratuity
fund established as trust. The Company accounts for the liability for gratuity benefits payable
in future based on an independent actuarial valuation carried out at each Balance Sheet date
using the projected unit credit method.

Fareign currencies transactions:

Transactions in currencies other than the Company's functional curréncy are recognized at the
exchange rate prevailing on the date of transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities
dehominated in foreign currencies ate translated irito the functional currency at the closing
exchange rate prevailing as at the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rate prevailing at the date
of initial recognition (in case measured at histarical cost} or at the rate prevailing at the date
when the fair value is determined (in case measured, &t fair value). Foreign exchange
differences are recognized in Staternent of profit and {oss in the periad in which they arise
except for exchange difference on foreign currency borrowings relating to assets under
construction for futuré productive use, which are included in the cost of thosé assets when
they are regarded as an adjustment {o interest cost on those foreign currency borrowings.

2.17 Operating Segments

o

The Managing Rirector of the Company has beeh identified as the Chief Operating Decision
Maker (CODM) as defined by the IND AS 108, "Operating Segment”. Operating segments are
reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided te the Chief Operating
Decision Maker (CODM} of the Company.

The primary business of the Company is financing of retail loans to end customers for purchase
of equipment manufactured by its garent Company. This forms the major part of the income
and business performed by the Company. The Company aiso provides services to its overseas
units; however, it is not of significant value.

v



John Deere Financial India Private Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements

2.18

2.19

Earnings per share;

The Compariy reports basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) in accordance with Ind AS 36
“Earnings per Share". Basic.EPS is computed by dividing the net profit and loss attributable to
ordinary equity holders of the parent entity by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is computed by dividing the net profit and loss
attributable to afdinary equity holders of the parent entity by weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the year as adjusted for the effects of all diiutive potential
ordinary shares {except wheré the results are anti-dilutive).

Taxation:

Incoine tax expense represents the sum of tax currently payable and deferred tax. The
Company elécted to exercise the option permitted under Section 1158AA on the Income-tax
Act, 1961 as introduced by the Taxation Laws (Amendment) Act, 2019: Accordingly, the
Company has recognized Provision for Income tax for the year ended March 31, 2020 and
remeasured its deferred tax assets /liabilities basis the rate prescribed in the said section.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based onthe taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from
profit before tax:as reported in the Statement of profit and loss because of items of income ar
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years aid items that are never taxable or
deductible, The current tax is calculated using the tax rates that have been enacted or
substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Advance taxes and provisions for current income taxes are presented in the Balance Sheet
after offsetting advance tax paid and income tax provision arising in the same tax jurisdiction
and where the relevant tax paying units intends to settle the asset and liability on net basis.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities in the standalone financial statements and the corresponding tax bases. used in
the computation of taxable profits. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all
taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognized for all deductibie
temporary differences to the exient that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilized. Such deferred tax assets
and ltabilities are not recognized if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognized if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of goodwill.

The carrying amount of deferred tax asset is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and

reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

o
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2.19 Taxation {continued)

2.20

Deferred tax hiabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period in which the liability is settled or the asset is realized, based on tax taxes {and tax faws) that
have been enacted or substantively enactéd by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority and the relevant entity intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a

net basis.

Current tax and deferred tax for the vear

Current and deferred tax are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss, except when they
relate to items that are recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case, the current and deferred tax are also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity réspectively.

Provisiots and Contingent liabilities:

Provisions:aré recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of past event, it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the obligation, and
a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognized as provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows
estimated to settle the present obligation, it's carrying amount is the present value of those cash
flows (when the effect of time value of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be
recovered from a third party, a receivable is recognized as an asset it is virtually certain that
reimbursement will be received, and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-
tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used,
the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made where there is a possible obligation that arisés from
past events and the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence
of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Comipany or a present
obligation that arises from the past events where it is ejther not probable that an outflow of
resources will be reguired to settle the abligation or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be
made.

i
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2.21 Standards issued but not yet effective:
Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standard or amendments to the existing
standards. There is no such notification which would have been applicable from 01 April 2020.
3 First time adoption of ind AS — Mandatory exceptions and optional exemptions:

The Company has adopted Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as notified by the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs with effect from st April 2019, with a transition date of 1st April 2018. The
financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 are the first financial statements, the
Company has prepared under Ind AS. For all petiods up to and including the year ended
31March 2019, the Company prepared its fihancial statements in accordance with the
accounting standards notified under the section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read together
with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 ('Previous GAAP’).

The adoption of Ind AS has been carried out in accordance with Ind AS 101, First-time Adoption
of Indian Accounting Standards. Ind AS 101 requires that all Ind AS standards and
interpretations that are issued and effective forthe first Ind AS financial statements be applied
retrospectively and consistently for all financial years présented. Accordingly, the Company
has prepared financial statements which comply with Ind AS for the year ended March 31,
2019 and the opening Ind AS Balance Sheet as at April 1, 2018, the date of transition to Ind AS
and also as at March 31, 2019.

The adjustments made. by the Company in restating its financial statements prepared under
previous GAAP, including the statement of profit and loss account for the year ended March
31, 2020 and the Balance Sheet as at April 1, 2018 and as at March 31, 2019 is explained in
Note 3.

In preparing these Ind AS financial statements, the Company has availed certain exemptions
and exceptions in accordance with Ind AS 101, which'are stated below. The resulting difference
between the carrying values of the assets and liabilities in the financial statements as at the
transition date under Ind AS and Previous GAAP have been recognized directly in equity
(retained earnings or another appropriate category of equity}.

De-recognition of financial assets and financial liabilities

The Company has applied the de-recognition requirements of financial assets and financial
liahilities prospectively for transactions occurring on or after April 1, 2018 (the transition date).
Classification of debt instruments

The Company has determined that classification of debt instruments in terms of whether they

meet the amortized cost criteria or the fair value through profit or lass criteria based on facts
and circumstances that existed as of the transition date.

»,
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3

First time adoption of Ind AS = Mandatory exceptions and optional exémptions {continiued)
Deemed cost for property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

The Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all its plant and equipment
and intangible assets recognized as of April 1, 2018 (transition date) measured as per the
previous GAAP arid.use that carrying value as its deemed cost as of the transitiod date.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company has applied the impaifment requirements of Ind AS 109 retrospectively;
however, as pefinitted by Ind AS 101, it-has used reasenable and suppartable information that
is dvailable without uridue cost of effart to deterrine the credit risk at the date that financial
instriuments werg initially recognized in order to compare it with the credit risk at the transition
‘date. Further, the Company has nat uhdertaken an exhatistive search for informiation when
determining, at the date of transition to Ind AS, whether there has been significant increase in
credit risk since the initial recognition;, as permitted by Ind AS101.
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3 Explanation to Transltion of ind AS

Reconciliations between Previdus GAAP and Ind AS

A, Equity reconcillation
- Rain Lakhs
o AsdtMarch31,  jAsatpprll, |
Faptieniars 2019 2018 i
Equity as reported under Previous GAAP 38,064:18 30,824.61 |
Adjusted For reduction: i
Discounting of non-currenc'security deposit . 10.25) [0.06:-:
Adjusted for additlon: |
Im’Ea'irmem allowance on Fipancial Instruments moasured at Amortised cost 2,148.17 136897 |
Income accrued or: Stage 11l assets 786.91 $99.83 |
Delerred tax ad]ustment 1894.77) (57320}
Equlty under Iid AS 40,104.24 | 32,2004 |
B.  Total Comptehenslva inceme reconciliation
fs L‘kh’ll
As at March 33, |
Partleulars 12019
|Net profit_as reported under Previous GAAP 223357
Add. -
[impairment allowante on Financlol Instruments measured at Amartised cost 779.20
| Retneasurement of the défined benefit ehligation 5343
Deferred tay adfustrnent [321.84)
Income accrued on Stage IH assels 1B7.08
|Income tax telating to 1 of the defined benelit obligation (15.56)
Discounting for Security depasit given {0.22)
Net Profit under nd AS 2922.07
Other Comprelienstie hicome [OC1)
Remessurement of the defined benefit abligatlon {53.43)
Income tax relating to remeasurement of the defined benefit obligation 15.56
Total Comprehiensive lncome as per Ind AS 2,884.20
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C.  Reconcillation of Balance sheetas at March 31, 2019

Hs in Lakhs

Particulars

Note

1}
Amount 3s per

Transition Adjustments

Amount as per

1Previous GAAP® IND AS
ASSETS
Flnandal Asscts '
(i) Cashand cash cquivalents 7.629.05 o . 7,629.05 |
{ii) Rank balance other than (a).abave a.61 061 ;
{lli} Recevables- Trade recetvables 189.30 . 189.30 |
{{iv) Loans [& 164.674.14 2,935.08 167,609 22 |
1iv} Other financial assets it 43.30 (547} 37.83
{Yolal-financlal assets 172;536.40, : 291981 | 17546601
Non-flaanclal Assets
(i) Curreat tax (Net) 234.71 23471
(4] Deferred tox assets {net) vl 2,221.89 1894,77} $.327.41
{iif} Property, Plant and Equipment 132.76 132.76
{iv) Capital work-in-prograss = 1.35 . 135
(v) Other don Inancia) assets iv 34233 5.2% 347.55
Total Non:financial assets 2.932,03 {889.55) 2,043.43
Total Asspts 175.465.43 2,040.06 177,509.49
Bs it Lakhs
e Amount as per . Amount as per
Partizulars t N Transition Adfustments P
Mete Previous GAAP® ] IND A5
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Labii
Flnanclal Jlabllitles
i} Detlvative financiat instfument - .
{li} Payahles - . -
{a) Trade payables - .
- Dues of Miceo Srmall and Medium Enterprises 1,08 . .1.08
+ Oues ta other than Micro Smalt and Medlom Enterprises 992,10 998.10
{lir} Debr securities 80,622.9%8 - 80,622.98
{Iv) Barrowings (Other than Debt securities) 54,744.95 . 5£,744.95
{v] Other finantial Yiabllities 505.57 505.57
Total Finanelal {labititles 136,872,658 » 136,872.68
Non-financial liahllities
{i) Current tax liabilltes (Net) 4,28 4,24
(i} Provislons 454.57 454,57
{iti) Other Mon (Inanclal Habilites 23.76 : 73.76
Tatal Non financial iabilities 532,57 . 532,57
EQuITY .
1y £aulty Shate capltat 34;390.00 . 34,390.00
{ii) Other taquity 3,674.18 2,040.06 5,714.26
Total Equtty 38.054.18 2.04006 | 4010423
Total Equity and Labllitles 175,469.43 2,040.06 177,500.43

v Arevious GAAP fgures have been reclassifled to canfarm Yo IND AS presentation pequirement for the purpose of this note
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D.  Reconcliation of Galance sheetas at April 1, 2018

R in Lakhs
i &

Amaount as per . . Amount as per
Particulars tlan Ad]ust:
! Note Previous GAAP * Transitlan AdJustments IND AS
ASSETS
Flnanclal Assets i
{!} Cash and cash equivalents 1,749.11 - 1,749.11
1fi} Bank.balance ather than (a) abové 057 0.57
(il Recolvables: Trade receivables 99.23 - 99.23
{iv) Loans 810 115,882 92 1.968.81 117,851.23
(v} Other linancial assets il 43,30 (8.29) 35.11
Total finandal assets 112,725.13 1,960.62 119,735.75
Non-financial Assats:
(i) _Current zax (Nat) 32.43 32,43
(ily Deferred \ax assets {ner) v 1.602,02 {573:31) 1,0238.71
{ill) Preperty, Pant and Eauipment 91.98 - 91.93
tivl Capital work-in-progress 211 - 2.11
(v} Other Non financlal assets 1% 189.55 5.12 197.67
Total Non:financfal assets’ 1.918.05 1565.15) 1,352.90
Total Assets 113,653.22 1,395.43 121,08B,65
A 1 -
Particulars Note omauniEsiper Transition Adjustments “"“?”"‘ as.per
:Previous GAAP * IND AS
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY'

Liabllities

|
1
I
i
i
1
.

Finantla) labilities
{a) Derivalive:linancial {nstrument
{b) Payables .
{l) Trade pavables - - .
- Dugs of Micro Small and Metlum Entérpiises 3,00 3.00
- Dues 1o other than Micro Small apd Medium Enlerprises 57539 575.39
{c) Debe securilies * 3 =
{d) Boreawlrigs {Other. than Deby seeirities) 87,561.92 B7,561.92
i) Other financia! liablitlés 372.12 - 372212
Total Financial llahilkies 83,522.43 - 88,512.43
Non-financial llabilitles
{a) Current ta labiites |Net) . 1.52 1.52
th) Provisions 306.50 306.50
{c} Other Non financlal llabllitles 48,16 48.16
Total Non financlal flablilties 356.1R - 356.18
EQUITY
{3) Eaully Share capltal ~ 29,330.00 . 29.390.06
(b) Other Equity 1,434.61 1.395.43 2,820.04
Total Equity 10,824.51 1395.43 32,220.04
Totol Equlty and Uabltitles T S _' 119663.22 1.395.43 121.088.65

* Previous BAAP flzures have beeti reclass!led ta conform to IND AS presentation requirement for the purpose of this note
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i)

i)

lv)

vl

vl)

G)

Recondliation af Proflt 3nd Loss for the year paded March 31, 2015 Rs in lakhs
Particulars Note Aoynt ag pee Transltion AdJustments Amopnt 25 per.
Previous GAAP * INO AS
: —
Revenue from operations ]
— 4
{a) interest income I 22.863,16 187,08 23.050.24 |
{b) Othor cperating income 145.77 - 145.77
]
Total Revenue fram cperations S 23,008.93 187.08 23,1596,01
Other Income iil 279.81 272 28253
Total income - i 23,288.74 159.80 73,478.54
i
Expenses
{3) Employee benefits expense ] v 3.259.50 (37.85} 2.262.05
{b} Finance cost 10,222.89 - 10,222.39
I{c} Depreclation and amortisation Expense 58.25 - 53.25
{d) tmpairment on financial Instrunieats [} 2,269.31 {773.20 1.499.11
{2) Other il 4284:45 291 4,387,365
Total expenses 20.234.80 {814.14} 19.420.66
Prafit_before tax {IIl - V) 3,053.94 1,003.94 4,057.88
Tax expenso:
Current tax 1.434.21 - 143471
Deferred tax Vi |619.84) 321.44 1298.40)
Profit for-the year {vi- VIl} 2,239.57 682,50 2,922.07
Other comprehenslve income B
{A) ttems that will not be reclassified o profit or Joss
(3) Remeasurement of Deflned Benefit Lability/iAsset) v . {53.43} {53:43)
(biincome tax fefating ta.items that wilf not be feclassified to profit or loss vi . 15.56 15.56
{8) iterns that will be reclassified to orolit or loss - «
Tota Cominrekensive Income {VIIl + 1%} 2,239.57 644,62 2,884.20 |

* Previous GAAP Ngures have bean reclassified to conform to ND AS presentation requirement for tho purpase of this note

Notes

H an Fi

mg ial Instruments at Amaortfsed cost and trade recelvables

Under Frevious GAAP, the provisianing on overdue foans was as per management estimates, subject (o the minimum provision requlfed as pee Master Directlon- Non Banking Financlal Company -

Systematically Important Non Deposit taking Company and Deposit Taking Company {Reserve Bank) Dircctions, 2016. Under ind AS, impalrment allowance:is calculated as-per expected credit loss

method.

Interest Income meastred using effective interest method

Under Previous GAAP, Interest Income on non performing asscts (i.e. loans that are 90 days past due} vwas not accrued. Under Ind AS Interest income an.such loans are recognlsed on their net carrylng

amount.

Sccurity Deposits

Under. the previous GAAP, interest-free lease security deposits {that are réfundable in cash at the end of the lease term) are recogalsed ds an asset at transaction value. Under Ind A5 109; all flnancia!
assets are required to be recorded at fair value. Accordingly the Company has fair valued these securlty depesits under Ind AS. The difference in the fair value and the transaction value of the security
deposit has been fecognlzed 35 a prapaid expenses. The prepald cxpense is.amortised over the perlod of the Jease which Is partlally offset by the aotional interest Income recognized on the related
security deposits.

Prepaid Expenses
Under Ind AS, interest Iree {eased deposhts are fair valued and Lhe ditference between the fair value and the teansaction value of the sceurity depasit has been recognized as prepaid expenses

Re-measurements of dofined benefit obligations
Under the previous GAAP; dctuarial Baing and losses were recognised in the statement of profit or lass. Under Ind AS, the actuanal galns and losses form a part of re-measurement of the net defined
benefic liahllity / assets which Is recognlsed in other comprehensive income.

Deferred tax
Etfect of Deferred taves recognised on the INDAS adjustments

Cash Now Statement
There are.no materiil reconciliation items to cash flow staternents as reported in Previous GAAP linancials
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Note 4: Cash and cash equivalents

Rs. in Lakhs
Particulars As at Marely 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019 As at Aprll 1, 2018
{2)Balances wilh banks in current accounts 8,002.24 7,624.76 1,745.75
{b) Remlttance in transit 22.18 4.29 3.36
Total 8,024.42 7,629.05 1,749.11
Note 5: Bank balances otherthan cash and cash eguivalents
Rs. in Lakhs
Partlculars As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019 As at April 1, 2018
(a} Deposit with bank for VAT purposes Q.59 0.61 0.57
Total 0:59 | L 0.61 0.57
Note 6: Receivables - Trade Receivablés
Rs. In Lakhs
Particulars -As at Miarch 31, 2020 As atMarch 31, 2019 As at April 1, 2018
Réceivables considered goad - unsecured 266.44 189.30 99,23
Taotal 266.44 189.30 99.23
Note 7: Loans
Rs. ih Lakhs
Particulars As at:March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019 As at April 1, 2018
Secured Term Loaris at Amartized cost within India
Secured Term Loans to customers under Financing Activities 238,895.96 170,414.30 119,938.52
Less : Impairment foss allowance (Refer Note ne.26.09) (5,850.48) {2,805.08) (2,086.79)
Total 233,045.48) 167,600 22 117,851.73
* There are no l03ns otitside 1ndia
Nate 8: Other financial assets
Rs, in Lakhs
Particulars As at March 31,2020 As at March 31, 2019 As at April 1, 2018
Security Deposlits 66:62 37.83 35.11
Total 66.62 37.83 35.11
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Note 2 {a): Preperty, plant and equipment

Rs, In Lakhs
Description Computers and Furniture and Fittings Total
Networking
Equipment
Cost
Balance as at April 1, 2018 [deemed cost) 90.95 1.03 91,98
Additions 79.70 20.88 100.58
Disposals 2.02 - 2.02
Balance as at March 31, 2019 168.63 21.91 180.53
Accumulated depreciation .
Depreciation for the year 54,32 3.93 5825
Eliminated on disposal of asséts 0.47 - 0.47
Balance as at March 31, 2019 53.85 3.03 57.78
Net carrying amount as on March 31, 2019 114.78 17.98 132,76
- Rs. In Lukhs
Description Cdmputers and Furniture and Fittings Total
Netwarking
fquipment
Cast
Balanceas at March 31, 2019 168.63 21.91 190.54
Additions 117.06 14.27 131.33
Disposals 3.08 - 3.08
Balance as at March 31, 2019 282.61 36.18 318,79
Accumulated depreciation N,
Balance as at April 1, 2019 53.85 3.93 57.78
Depreciation for the vear 70.29 6.47 76.76
Eliminated on disposal of assets 1.95 - 1.95
Balance as at March 31, 2020 122.19 10.40 132.59
Net carrying amount as on-March 31, 2020 160.42 25.78 186.20
Note 8 (b): Right of Use Asset
Rs. in Lakhs
Description Total
Cost
Balance as at Aoril 1st, 2019 353.34
Additians 35.07
Disposals -
Balance as at March 31, 2020 388,41
Accumulated depreciation
Balance as at April 1, 2019 -
Depreciatton for the year. 128.36
Eliminated on disposal of assets .
Balance as at March 31, 2020 128,38
Net carrylng amount as on March 31,2020 260.05
Note 10: Other non-financial assets-unsecured considered good
Rs. In Lakhs

Particulars

As at March 31, 2020

As at March 31, 2019

As at April 1, 2018

(3)Balances with Government authorities-
(i} GST credit recelvable
(it) GST relund on export services

{b} Prepaid expenses

{c) Advance to suppliers

{d} Employee advances

Total

269.49 95.06 40.08
82.20 £8.93 24.65
71.41 §6.20 88.58
182.21 477 5.81
| 105.81 70.03 38,54
711,12 347.55 197.67

Note:

Mo advances are due from directars or other officers of the company either severally or jontly with any other person. Nor any advances
are due from firms or private companies respectively in which any director is 4 partner, a director or a member

N,
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Note 11 ; Derivative financial Instrument

Rs. in Lakhs
Particulars As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019 As at April 1, 2018
Fareign currency forward Contract not designated in hedge 154.45 .
accounting relationship
{Refer note no, 26.14}
Total 154.45 - -
Note 12:Payables
Rs. in Lakhs
Particutars As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019 As at April 1, 2018
Trade Payable
-total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and 0.01 108 3.00
small enterprises (Refer note n0:26.10)
-total outstanding dues of creditors other than 1,143.59 958,10 575.39
micro enterprises ang small enterprises
Total 1,143.60 999.18 578.39
Note 13 ; Debt Securlties
Rs. in Lakhs
Pacttculars As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019 As at April 1, 2018

At amortized cost
Unsecured

{a) Privately placed nan-convertible debentures 80,783.49 80,622.98 -
{b) Commercial papers 28,336.21 - -
Total {a+b} 109,112.70 80,622.98 -
Debt securities in Indla 109,119.70 80;622:98 <
Debt-securlties outside India - -
Total Debt securities 109,115.70 80,622.98 -
Particulars of Privately Placed Unsecured Non-Convertible Debentures {"NCDs")
Description of NCDs Number of NCDs Rs, in Lakhs Redemption Date
As at March 31, 2020
9.45% Non Convertible Debentures (Privately Placed) 5,000 50,000 10-Jan-22
9.30% Non Convertible Debentures (Privately Placed) 3,000 30,000 25-5ep-20
As at Mareh 31, 2019
9.45% Non Convertible Debentures {Privately Placed) 5,000 50,000 10-lan-22
9.30% Nan Convertible Debentures {Privately Placed) 3,000 30,000 25-Sep-20
Particulars of Commerclal papers outstanding as on March 31, 2020
Drescription of CPs Number of CPs Rs. in Lakhs Redemption Date
Commercial papers 6,000 30,000 29-Jan-21

“




John Deere Financial India Private Limited

Note 14: Borrowlings (Other than debt securities} - Rs. in Lakhs
Particulars As at March 32, 2020 As at March 31, 2018 As at April 1, 2018
At amortlzed cost
(a} Term loans
Unsecured Loans from banks 73,981.29 54,744.95 G7,534.62
(b} Loans repayable on demand
Unsecured Loans from banks-working Capital Demand Loan 11,526.63 20;027.29
Total 85,507.90 54,744.95 87,561.92
Borrowings in India 72,680.24 54,744.95 87,561.92
Borrowings outside India 12,827.66 . -
Total 85,507.90 54,744:95 87,561.92
Term Loan Repayment
Rs. in Lakhs
Year of repayment
Particulars
FY-2022-23 FY-2021-22 FY-2020-21
Standard Chartered Bank
Term-oan commencing fram 23rd May-2017  {Note i-and 31,500.00 4,550.00 4,100.00
ii)
The Bank of Tokyo Mitsubishi UFJ Ltd., india ) 2.800.00
Term loan commencing from 20th january 2016 (Note'i) T
ICICI Barik ioan cammenting from 27th March 2017 (Note ) 3,700.00 6,300.00 7,900.00
HSBC loan commencing from 4th March 2020 (Note i) 12,815.45

i) Of the above , term loans of amount Rs. 29,450 lakhs are repayable in quarterly equal fnstaliments
i) Termloans of amount Rs.31,500 {akhs are repayable in five monthly Instaliments starting from 33rd month to the 37th month.

iit) Term loan of amount Rs.12,815.45 [akhs is repayable in ane instaliment In FY 2022-23

iv) Working capital demand toan of R$.11,500 lakhs is‘repayable on.demand

v} Term loans interest rate ranges from 7.59% to 10.25%

Note 15 : Other financial liabllities Rs. in Lakhs
Particulars As at March 31,2020 | As at March 31, 2019 As:at April 1, 2018
{a) Accrued employee cost 365.53 448,77 345.81
{b} Payable to customers 101.75 56.80 26.31
Total 467,28 505.57 372.12 |
Note 16: Provisions Rs. in Lakhs
Partlculars As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019 As at April 1, 2018
{a) Provision for compensated absence 518.59 396,13 291,59
{b} Provision for gratuity 35.52 58.44 14.91
(Refer note no. 26.04)
Total 554.11 454,57 306.5¢
Note 17 : Other Non financial Liabilities Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019 As at April 1, 2018
{a) Statutary dues 98.95 73.76 48.16
Total 98.95 73.76 48.16
\
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Note 18 : Equity Share Capital

Rs. iti Lakhs
Particulars As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019 | As at April 1, 2018
Authorised:
800,000,000€quity shares of Rs; 10.(31 March 2018: 80,000.00 80,000:00 30,000.00
800,000,000 arid 1 April 2018: 300,000,000}
Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid:
393,900,000 Equity shares of Rs. 10 fuilyl paid-tp (31 March 39,390,00 34,390.00 29,390.00
2019: 343,900,000 and 1 Apr]l'20181-293;900,000}
Tota} 39,3590.00 34,390.00 | 29,390.00.

Note

i. The company has only:one class of.equity shares having par value of Rs. 10 per shafe. Each holdler of equity shaces is entitled to:oné

vote per share.

i. In the event of liquidation of the company, the halders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company,
after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be In propartion to the number of equity shares held by the

shareholders.
iii. Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year:
Rs. in Lakhs
Particulars Number of Shares Amount

Balance as on April 1, 2018 293,900,000 29,390.00
Add: Equity-shates issued during the year 50,000,000 5,000.00
Balance as on March 31, 2019 343,900,000 34,350.00
Add: Equity shares issued during the year 50,000,000 5,000.00
Balance as on March 31,'2020 393,200,000 39,390.00

1. Details of shares held by the holding company, the ultimate halding company, their subs

Idiaries and associates:

Particulars

No of Equity Shares
with Voting rights

As at March 31, 2020
- held by Johh Deere Lukembourg Investment SARL (Subsidiary of Ultimate Holding
Company)

- held by John Deere India Private Limited (3 wholly owned subsidiary of Iohn Deere Asia
{Singapore) Pte Limlted and thé Holding Company)

As at March 3%, 2018
- held by John Deére Holdirigs SARL {Subsidiary of Ultimate Holding Company)

- hiefd by John Deére India Private Limlted (3 wholly owned subsidiary of John Deere Asia
{Singapore) Ptz Umited and the Holding Company)

As at April 1, 2018
- held by John Deere Holdings SARL {Subsidiary of Ultimate Holding Company)

- held by John Deere India Private Limited {a wholly owned subsldiary of John Deere Asia
{Singapore) Pte Limited and the Holding Company)

10

393,899,930

10

10

293,899,990

343,899,990 |
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Nete 18 : Equity Share Capital (cantinued)

v. Details of shares held by each sharehalder holding more than 5% shares:

Particulars Number of shares held % holding in tﬁat
class of shares
As at March 31, 2020
lohn Deere India Private Limited {the Holding Company)} 393,899,990 100,00
As at March 31, 2013
John Deete India Private Limited {the Holding Company) 343,899,990 100.00
As at April 1,2018
John Deere India Private Limited {the Holding Company) 293,899,980° 100.00
Rs. in Lakhs
o As at March 31,
) As at 31, 20
Particulars s at March:31, 2020 2019
{a) Statutory Reserve u/s 451C of RBI Act, 1924 1,732.95 1,224.95
(b) Retained earnings
Balance at the beginning of the year 4,527,186 2,053.00
Add: Profit for the year 2,633.22 2,622.07
Less: Transfer to Statutory Reserve {508.00) {447.91)
Closing balance at the end of the year 6,552.38 4,527.16
{c JOther comprehensive income arising from remeasurement (33.14) {37.87)
of defined emplayee benefit plans
{net of deferred tax)
{d ) Securities Premium 165:.00
- Yotal 8.417.19 5,714:24

Nature and Purpose of Reserves ;

Particulars

Nature & Purpose of Reserves

Secutities Premium Account

Premium received upon issuance of equily shares

Statutory Reserve

As_prescribed by sectlon 45-1C of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934
every non-banking financial company shall create a reserve fund and
transfer therein a sum not [ess than twenty per cent of its net profit
every year as disclosed in the Statement of Profit and Loss and before
any dividend is declared. No appropriation of any sum from the reserve
fund shall be-made by the non-banking firiancial company except for the
purpose as may be specified by the Résérve Bank of India

Retained earnings

Retained earnings are the profits that the Compa‘ﬁ\_"liag aarned till date.

&h_er Comprehensive-lncome

Created on account of items measured through other comprehensive
income

oy {‘Y UV
\\ ¢
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John Deere Financial India Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements

Nolc 20: Revenue from operations

1. In Lakhy
A Fof the year ended For the year.ended
ey - 31 Morch 2020 31 March 2019
Revénua irom operations
1) Interes: Income 32,069.00 23,050.26
{£i) Osher aperating intdme 208.97 145.27
Total 32.277.97 23,196.01
MNote 21 : Otherincome
Rs. in Lakbs
‘For tha year ended Foé the yoar onded
Pty 31.Marchi 2020 21 March 2019
Interest on fixed deposits with bank 4172 33.98
Management foas income 76952 240.82
insurance claim received 389 070
[Miseataneows incame 3.09 7.03
Total 835.22 282.53
Note 22: Finance Cost
Ry in Lakhs
For the' year ended Far the year ended
Partizulars 31 March 2030 31 March 2019
Atamortized ¢ost
[i) Interest on borrewings from banks 5,04630 6,693.54
{il} nteress on debt secutitles 7,674.36 953,08
{iii) inter cozporate deposit 392.65 55.40
{iv} Discounting charges on comemercial papes 1,192.22 2,338.98
{¥) Interest éxpanses on'Leasa liabibty 2552 =
| {vi} Other lssuance cost §6.79 177,89
Total 14,397.14 10,222.85
Nole 23: Impalrment oa financlal |
Ry (nia
P For the year cnded Far the'year ended
Particulers ‘31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Qn Flrancial Ingtrurients nieasured at Amortized Coss
{Reter Hote 1o ,.26.09) '
‘Wrlse off (net of recoverles) 87859 771.82
3.045.40 718.23
Tofal 3.923.99 1,4380.11
Nate 24; Employen beneflts expanse
R - R o Lakhs
Particulars Forthe year ended For the yearended
31 March 2020 31 March 2015
Salarles and viages 4,058.86 3,057.39
Contributions 1o grbvident and other funds 149.22 11035
{Refer hble,na:.-ZG.ba}
share Baséd Payments ta eriployees (Refer note no. 25.13) {Net af reversal of excess {31.12) Taze
lability) '
Staff waifore expenses 19.10 65,45
Towl 4.296.08 3,262.05
Note 25: Qther expenses
R I Lakhs
Particutars Far tha year eaded Far the year ended
31 Mar 20 21 #arch 2019
Taciliy cost 20174 231,21
Repaks and maintenance - others 2% 5.96
imsurance ) 45.66 3465
Caminunication expenses daEh 28.37
Travelling and cohveyance 835,50 843 21
Markaling exponses 1550 339
1egafand professional 208,98 197.47
Qutscdrcing Cost 17598 1a7.98
Payment ta Audhars(Pefer nota no. 26 07 } 17.56
Fareign exchange less (net) 7037
Fived assets writlen of LCE
Management fecs expense 1,307.52
Lortmetlabzur expanses 2,88575
Infarmiation system expenses 2.202.50
Récrutreans and tralning expenses 87.61
SR Expenses(Refer nate no 26.12) ai s
Bankchisrges 3128
Pentiog and Stationery 67.£3
Courpr Services 634D
Megsmng expenges 2073
Jocument starage cost 2269
6163

Iet

— Gazragl
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26,01 Contingent llakilitics and Commitments ;-

Centirgent liabilities s in lakhs
Pariculdrs 31-Mir-20 31-Mar-19 1-Apr1k
Consurmer Redressal Matters® 100 1.00 3.00
Service Tax Matters I 72.03 29.45
Tetul 1.00 73.03 32.45

*Company has received a ndlice from the District Consumer Redressal Forum in lieu of a case fifed by a customer. Based on iegal confirmatfon obtained, the, management believes that all these

contingeacics are possible cash outflows and:not probadle.

Commitments s in lakhs
Partlculars 31-Mar-20] 31.-Mar-19 1.Apr-18
Estimated amaunt &f cagital cotitsacis to b éxecuted on capltal account and nét provided far {net of advance) 3453 3145 H.31
Loan to customer.under ﬁnanr.ing activittes 1,936.24 1,068:35 1,112.40
26.02 Payment tg Audltors :
its In [akhs
Particulars 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
As Audltors
a) Statutory audit 13.00 5.00
b} Tax Audit 1.00° 1.00
In other capacity =
Certilication 0.50. 1.35
For reimbursement oliexpenses: 1.61 0.15
Total 16,11 7.40
*Excluding indirect tax
26,03 The \_/ca:r.g:nd fqréign curency c}iposur'ns that have nat beep hedged by a derivative Instrument or otherwise are as below:
Araunt recelvable/payable In {ofeign curréney an accaunt of the following:
Rs n fakhs.
Particulars 31-Mar-20 31-Mar:20 1-Apr-18
Ampount in N
origtnal Amount in INR AouRgin Amount tn INR Amaunt In origlnal Amount In INR
original currency currency
furrency
Receivables
a) usp 3.51 272.99 .29 89.11 0.5 2.83
5) THB 22.10 51.01 18,78 40,93 226 4,73
Pavables
2 s 5.2 398.42) 6.42 44450 1.27 8256
b) EURD 0.06 5.6 0.04 2.78 0:04 3ss
g |Aw ' 0.44 203 - - .

26.04 Employee benefits;

A, Defined Contribution Plan

The Company makes pravident fund contribution to a defined contribution plan administered by Reglanal Pravident fund Commissioner. Under the scheme the Campany is required to
contribule a specified percentage af payrall cast to fund the benefits. The Company has recognized contribution to provident fund of Rs.137.20akhs in Lhe-Statement of Profit and Loss for
the year ended 31 March 2020 {21 March 2819: R5.99.43 lakhs), The cantribution pald by the Company is In accordance with the rules framed by government lrom time to time.

i} Defined Benelit Plap

Tha Campany makes contributions towards gratuity to fund defined benelit plan for qualltying ermiployees The plan arovides for a tump sum payment to employees, at retitement, death
white [n service or on termination of employment of an amount equivatent Lo 15 days salary for every completed year of service or a part there of Iy excess of six months, Vesting accurs
upon completion of five years of cantinuous service, The scheme is administzred by Kotak Life Insurance Limited and is funded based on demand received from the fund
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Emplayea benefits {Continued):
Amoun recognised In the Balance Sheet and movement In the net detinad benzfit obligatian for the year are as follows:
Rein fakhs

[Particulars N [ I1-Mar-20 31-Mar-39
i1]_Reconcillation of detined benefit obligatlon .
Lizbiiity at the beginning of the year ) 340,72 224 65
Current Sérvice Cost 54.66 39,47
interes: cost 25,20 1742
Der hic Gain/{Lets) on Plan Uabilltles 017 .
Flnarcial Gain/(Loss| on Plan tlabilitles 11.02 16.13
Experence Galn/{Loss) on Plan Assets S 5.10 45.00
Benetits Fild 110.24) {1.95)i
Prajected benoflt ahligation al the end of the yoar 82662 | 340,72 !
1
IIf_Reconcillation of Falr Value of Plan Assat —— i
Fait value of the Plan wsscts at the beginning of the yeir 28228 209.75 i
Expected Ta1Grn on plan Assets 2845 16.7€ |
Contribution o m 75.00 s0.00 |
Benafits Pald (10.2¢) {1.85)
Actuatlal Goin/ (Loss} on plap assets 2761 770!
Falr value.of pian asset af the end of Lhe year 391.10 282:28

lil) Amount recognised I Balance Sheet

Difinad Berabit Oblicat] e — : 1426:62) (340.72)
Fair valuo of plan assets - ] 391110 23228
Nat {Uiabllity)/ Asset recognised in the Balance Shect {35.52) {58.014}
Ra i Lakhs
Iv).Expenses recognlzed (n statement of pcoflt or loss under the head employee bericfit expenses 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
Currnat Sarvice Cost $4.66 3947
Intere it Expense on DEO 25.20 17:42
Interest (Incomne) on plan assets (21.45) {16.78)
(et \nterest Cost 3.75 0,64
Expenses recognlzed in Statement of Pralit or Loss 58.41 49.11

v) Re-maasurednent for the perlod In OC|

Aétuarial (Galn) / Loss due to Demegraphlc Assumptioh changes In DBO 0.17 .
Actuarlal (Gain) / Loss due to Financial Assumption changes in D80 1102 16.13
Actuarial (Gain) / Loss dug to Experience on SBO 510 45.00
fetdrn on Plan Asets (Geeater) / Less than Blzcount rate = {22.61) (2.70}
Return on tefmburzement riphts (excluding interest income) : | P, .
Changes in 331et celling/onerous Niabiliy [exchuding interestIncore) = 1 F PR |
Total Actuarial (Gain) /Logs included I OCH —=——1 (6.32) 5343 |
vl] Princlpal Actuarial Assumptlons 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19 01-Apr-18¢
Financial Assumptions

Dlscount Rate 6.60% 7,602 8.00%
Salary Eicalation 5.20% 9.00% 9.00%
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Employce benefits [Cantinued):

Rs I lakhs
Particulprs 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19 01-Apr-18
Deémographic Assumptions
2022- [ 6-
Monaiity Rate IAL.M‘ 012-14) ALM (2006-08) lAl‘_M (2006-08}
Ultimate Ulttmate Uitimate
Withdrawal Rate 21-30yr5~10%, 21-20yrs-103%, 21-30yts-104,
31-29yrs-12%, 31-3dyrs-12%, 31-38yrs-12%,;
35-44yrs-7%6 35-4dyrs 7 35-44y75-7%
45-50yrs-3%, 45.50yc3-335, 45.50yrs-3%,
51:54vrs-2%; 51-5dyrs-2%, 1 51-84yr5-2%,
55yrs & above-1% | 55yrs & above-1% ;fy“ Erabgve:
H %
Retlrement age ! 60 yoars | 60 years 6D years ]

(W As per para’&3 of Ind AS 19, the rate used to discount post-employfaent benefit obligations {both funced and unfunded) shail be determined by reference to market yields at the end of Ihe reporting

period on govamment bofids

(Il) Disclosure refated toindlcation of effect of the defined benefit plan on entity's future cash flows =

Parliculars 31-Mar-20] 31-Mar-19 01:Apr-18|
‘fear 1 2250 18.33 13.92
Year 2 22,13 19,03 12,76
Year 3 21.36 18.96 1316
Year 4 2057 13.08 .12.98
Year S5 2073 ! 17:91 12.24
Yedr 61910 86171 78.02 54.93
V1) Sensitivity Analysis:

Rsinlakhs
[Defined Denefit Obligation 33-Mar-20 31-Mar-19 01-Apr-18j
Biscount e
- Discount rate - 100 basls polnts 4B2.16 3£6:37 213.03
- Dlscoun? rate + 300 hasis points 377.21 302.28 165.53
Salary Inerease rale
- Rate - 100 basis paints 419.63 302.51 165.66
- Rate + 1C0 basis points 450 68 3§5.29 ‘21234

€. Campensated Abserces:

Compensazed absences which are net expected to aécur within twelve fonths after the ead of pr.j'riod in which the employee enders the related services are recognized as kability at the present vaiue
of defined benafit obligation as at e balance shert dat§. Atcordingly, an amournt of Rs.118.23 fakhs been charged to the Statement ol Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 1020 {31 March

2019: Rs.94.49 lakhs}.

26.05 The Company Is engaged in primarily financing equipment manufactuted and sold in Indla.by its holding company and its affiliates which, in the coritext of JND AS 102 - “Operating Segment” tonstitute
majerly.single reportable business segment;
26.06 Disclosurn as required by Indlan‘Accounting Stendard {Ind AS) - 24 on “Related Party Dlsclosures
A} Names of retated parties and description of refationship;
Sr No. Names of Related party Nature of Relationship
1t M, Satyen Sthas Shah- Mahaging Director- [Date upto- 30 June 2015) Key Management Personnel {MP)
2 M. Abhay Dinkar Dhokte - Managlng Dlrector {Date from- 1 July 2019) Key Management Personnel {KMP)
3 Mr, Ajit Jain- Diractor Kay Management Persennel (KM#)
4 Mir Felix Frie- Director Kay Management Persannel (KhiP)
5 Me: Menlsh Madhay Phalke - Director (Date from- 11 July 2019) Key Management Persanne] (KMP)
5 Mr. Suchir Thite — Company Secrctary.,('Dale upro~12 August 2019] Key Management Petsonnel {KMP)
7 Mr. Bhushan tManaf Kotecha (Date fram 19 August 2018 upte-2 March 2020) Yey Management Perzonne! (KMP)
8 Miss, Vaishnavi Bhupendra Suratwala- {Date From- 2 March 2020) Key Management Personnel (KMP) i
9 Deere & Compapy _- T Ultimate Holdirig Company
10 luhn Deere Indin Private Limited - Hulding Company
11 luhn Deere Asli SingaporePle Limited Intermed Lur.‘e H’o-ldlng C;n-plln\r
12 Oeere Cred|t Services Inc Fellow Subsidiary (whece transaction exist)
13 lohn Deere GMBH & Company. Fellow Subsidiary (vshete transaction exist)
14 Joha Deere Braslt Ltda, _ e Fellow Subsidiary (whete transaction exist]
15 lohn Deere Leasing (Thalland] Limited F:Ii-l»‘o\v:Sub:l.lc‘Iia;;ll\;l.l;r:z "c;a‘nsa‘c-ti; q;ﬁt] T
16 Jithn Deere Finance Lease Co Ltd {China} Frllow Subiidiary (whare transaction exist)
17 Hance John Decre S.A., L Fullow Subsidiary [whete tramsaction sxist)
16 Jehn Deere Finangial Umited {Austrdlla) Fallow Subsidiary (where transacthion exlst)
19 Wirtgen Indla Private Limited Fellow Subsidlary [where transaction ealst)
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plsclgs‘ure as régulred by Indlan Accounting Stundard {Ind AS] - 24 on “Refated Party Disclosures- {Continued}

8} Transactlon with Related partles:-
Hs in lakhs
Ultlmate ] 7
Sr. No. Particulars Holding  {Holding Campany fliow KMPp Total
i Subsldiaries
Company _ } {
I T = —
1 |Ramur12r:|tmn~ XMP ! 205.25 20525
i ) 3] I8 {201.96) 1203:961
I i e ]
2 Inter Company deposit recelved 4 77,000.00 71,000,00
1+ {73,976 99} ) 1) (72,976,933}
3 Inter Company Deposit repaid 72.000.00 = ¥ 77,000.00
B {:} [73,976.99) |B] [ G) 173,976.39)
4 Allotment of Equity shares - 5'155'09 ‘ 5515530}
(18 {5,00000)} (B} {3 {5,000.00);
3 Inletest exgense 3 391.65 = - 391.65
i} (39.40), 14 [ {59.40)
6. Othier reimbursement: 288 522:63 1617 g 687.22
g [504.86) {12.18) ) 151704}
? Managemant lees |Income) y 27,36 74277 767.14
i — (8] 8] {240.82) i) {240.82),
8 Management tees {Expense) y 508:57 693.03 = 1,206,566/
1) {527.35) {276.23) () {704.08)
9 Faellity cost ¥l 18662 - . 186.62
i (] {121.20) ] ) {322.20}
10 Information system- Expenses 1,005.71 d437.52 1614 Y 201967
{699.34) 132.29) (13,82} {:) {795:05)
1 Reimbursement of Salary. (pald) i 320.99 % - 32099
() {198.91) -] (&l {195.91)
. G - * ' 53.69 - 53,69
12 Reimbursement of Salary {received ) ;
i i e 2] -} {69.81) 2 (6.8
13 Qther expenses 19.00 - ;51 - 195
‘ (84.83) 19.10] 1 ¢} {92.93)
22 Other Income ki ) b " o
Q) {139.50} ) %) 1233.50)
15 Payaliles af the end of the year 2oaa 185.21 167.92 } 570.08
{212.05). {160.65) {235.23) {1.64) {609.57)
16 feceivables atthe end of the year 14078 1243 182,'% - 43”
il - {130.04) ) {130.04)

Ndtes:

A} The amaunts are excluding indirect taxes

ii} There are no amounts written ofl ar wiltten back during the year In respect of debls due from relaled party,

i1)) Flgures in brackels represent figures for previous year

jv)Rémuneratlon excludes provision for employee benefits as separate actuarial valuation tor KMP Is not available.

26.07 Cperating Leases:

The Company has applied Ind AS 116 using the modilled retrospective approach-and therefore the comparative information has not been restated Brlef description of nature and lype of lease assets

A, light of use assets

A5 in lakhs

Partitulars Premises Total
Balance as at Aprll 01, 2019 353.34 353.34
At inflal direct cost . o
Ada: Addition duting the year. 35.07 35.07
19n actount of remeasurement af lease liability oy 2 .
Less: depriciation charped for the perlod. {128.36) (128.36}
Balance 25 at March 31, 2020 = 260,05 2560.05 !
B Lease liabilitics fsin lakhs
Particulars Asat
March 31, 2020
jLease fabilit R _ 27098
C, Interest on leara ljabll|ties N3 in lakhs
Particulars A at
March 31, 2020
|Interast on lease liabllities i 29,32
0. Amounts recegnied-in the statement of case fow Hsip lakhs
Particulars As ar
March 31. 2020
Total cash outlliow Igrl’ga_;_e_g _--' ) ‘L_d_.".j_SJ
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26.07

26.08

26.09

26.10

26:11
{A)

Cperating Leases: {Continued)
E. Misturity. analysiz ~ convractual updiscounted cash flows fig In bakhs
Particulars As at |
March 31,2020 !
Less than one year 127—‘-2-5__:
One to five years ' 149.28 |
Mars tharfive yaars o R T 36,39
l‘!i‘" undiscounted lease Hablities ot March 32, 2020 T | 31332 ¢
Earalngs Per Share is calrulated as follows:

Bt Inlakhs
iSyNo. TParticulars ] 31-Mar-20; 31-Mar-18
L { tvat Profic arzribuzable th sharaholders i 2,533.22! 2,822.07
| i) Weighted average number of Equity Shares 3,1185;' 2,958
: il Nominal value of enuity share 19} 19

iv) 3asic and Diluted 073 .99,
Note! Thers i no eilgtion to hasic EPS sincd there are no outsianding potentlaly ciltive egulty shares,
Pravision for cantingency and losses on [oans glven to. customers [financing activities)
£ in lakhs
Partlcutars 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
Opening balance 3,805.08 2,086.79
Provided during the year 3,923.99 1,4%011
Provision utilized durlng the year {878 59); (771,82)
Clasing balanee 5,650,16] 2,805.08
{Anfer sighifiennit sctounting pollciesfor brlef dnsteintian of the nature of the provision)
Compllance with Micro, Small and Medivm Eaterprises Develop Act, 2006
fis In lakhs
Partlculars 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
The Company, has amounts due to suppliers under The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act. 2006 (MSMED:ACT)
The disclosure pursuant to:the sald Act (s 25 under: “
Principal ameouns dus to suppliers under BASMED Act, 2006 . 108
Hnzerest accrued and due ta supphérs under MSMED Act ot the above amount, unpaid -
Payments made 30, supptlers [other than interest ) beyond the appointed date, durlpg the year 6:62 0.64
nterest paid to supoliers under MSMED Act [ather than seciion 1) -
|Interes: paidd 1 zupplists under MSMED Act [ zection 16) .
blnt_erest dua and payable 1o supphiers under MSMED Act tor payments alrendy made beyond the appointed date during the current yeac 0.01 Q.00
Interest accrued and remalnlng wnpaid 2o suppllers under MSMED as at year end 001 0.00
The amount of further interestremalning due and nayable even in the succeeding years, untll such date wheri the inlerest dues as above are actually paid to the o0t 3
small entecpelse for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expendlture under the MSMED Act, 2006 :
{ncome Taxes:
Tho tax effect of significant timirg differences that has resuited ine deferred tax assets and liabilitles are given below:
) e in takis
Panticulars T 31-Mar-20 31-Mor-19 1-Anr-18
Deferred tax llabtlities
{!} Dahenture issue exgenses 4375 9137 9.21
(ii} Depreciation on property, plant, equipment 5.07 4.42} 7.18
[Total 23,82 95.75! 16.39]
Deferred tax assets i i
[{i) tpalemeant ioss allowabce 1 1,672:57 .'316_8'3—;r 607.67
{{ii) Employee banafiz i 217.43 245,001 176,05
[tiv} Defecred income L i 470.18 36 07! 26138
| i i
[Tout '_ S 2,760.18 1.422.0 1.045.10
INctdeferred tan Asset ) | 2,117.36 132711 1,028.71
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(8)

(=]

)]

(€)

Income Taxes: {Continued)

The reconcillation of ¢stm3ted Income tax expense at statutory Income tax rate ¢

Az in lakhs

As ot March 31, | As 2t March 31,
Partlculars
2020 2019
Profit befare income taxes 3,368.97 4,057.58
Indjan statuteny incgime 12s rate e 2517% 29.12%
Expected income tax expense 853 26 1,181:66
Tax effect of adjustments 1o reconcite expected income iag pxdense ta
Income exempt from tax {91.50}
Nap deducubie expenses Lo | 12,09 702
Dther éxpenses J {3.B2)
Rate change Impacu 1 180.25
Total Income tax expensce i 954.10 1,184:86
Taxes effects fon earller years {92:35) {49.05)
Tatal incorrie Lax expense recognised In Proflt and Loss Au:oiip_t 356.75 1,135.81
Niite! The Company’s reconcillatlan of the effectiva tax rate [+ based bnits domastle tan rate opplicable to respective lnancial years
The income tax expense charge to Proflt and Loss accoupt:
Rs [ fakhs
PoRIE T AsatMarch31, | As at March 31,
2020 2019
Current tax:
Cugrent Lax expense fof the pericd 1,738.35 1,483.25
Current'tax expense / {beriefit) paralning to prior years {9735} 149,04}
Deferred tax benefit
Origindtion and reversat af temporary diftercnces (78425} {619.86)
Changein tax rates / Ind As linpact . 321.46
Total intome tax experise recognised (n Lhe year = §56.75 1,135.81
s recognised in Other Compreh Incore {OCI)
Hs In [akhs
For the year
Particulars Forthe yeag endeg ended March 31,
March 31, 2020
2013
Rems that will not be reclassified ta prafit or loss
Remcasurements of defined Leneft liability (assal} {1.59) 15.56
Items that are or may be reclassified subsequently to orofit or loss
Nét amaunt transferred to profit or loss -
The major components of deferred tax assets and llahilities for the year ended hMarch 31, 2020 are as follows:
R in lakha
Recognised /
Particulars 1st April 2019 | reversed thraugh | Recognlsed Jn OCT | 315t March 2020
profit and lass
Defecred Tax Assets :
{a) impairment loss allowance 816.84 655.73 . 1.472.57
{b} Employea bencht 245.81 125.95) (3.59) 217.45
Ic} Deferred income 361,08 10912 A70.13
Deferred Tax Liabllities
(2] Debenture Issue expenses 191.37) _ 181 {43.76)
{b) Depreciation on praperty, alang, eaulpment 11.52) o _n'_O.éﬁj {5.08)
Net Deferred Tax Asset 3,327.11 785.84 (153 2.111.36
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Income Taxes: {Continuvd)

The major tampanents of deferred tax assets and Nabllitles for the year ended March 31,2019 are as follows:

26,12- Corparate Socla) Responsibllity

Rs i lakhis
Recognised /
i
Partlculats 1 1stAprl| 2018 | reversed through | Recognisedin OCI | 31st March 2019
proNt and Joss
i
Deferred Tak Assets: |
fa) tmpalrmént oss allowance . $07.67 20037 - 816,84
{b) Errployee beneli 176.03 8450 {15.56) 244,99
1e) Detereed ingome o 261381 99.69 361,00
Defesced Tax Liabilities s
{a) Debenture issue expenses 19.21) {32.16) §91,37)]
(b) Depreciation on propeny, plant, equipment {7.18) 2.76 - (4.42)
Net Deferred Tax Asset. 1028.71 313.96 {15.56} 132711

As per prowsions of.section 135 of Companies Act 2013, the Company was required tospend 2% ofiaverage net profits carned.during the three immed|ately preceding financlal years, in gursuance of fts
Corporale Sacial Responsibility Polley on the activilies speclfied in Schedule VIT ofLhe Act.

fts i takhs
Partlculars 31-M§r320' 31-Mar-19
Grass amount required to be spent by the Company during the year 4110 2817
;;ount'sbi;nl durjng the year: L 4176 27,89

** The above éxpensés are for 3'puipose otherthan construction or acqulsition of any asset

26,13 Employee sharc-hased payment plans

Daere and Company, |he dlkr

helding Company issues stock.optichs and restricted stock avards to key emplayees of the Company and its subsidiaries. Options arc awarded with th_e exerclse price

eqlal 1o the market price and be Eqmc exerctiable in 1 10 3 years aftel prant. Optlons exphre 10 years after the date of grant. Restricted stock awards generally vests afier 3 years, The detalls of the plan

are as under:

Share-based payment arrsngemant that existed at any time during the perind:

Partleutars STOCK OPTIONS RESTRICTED STOCK UNITS {RSUs)
31-Mar-20 i 35-Mar-19 3i-Mar-20 '31-M.a_.r-19

{A) Share:based payment aryangement that existed at any time during:the period:

(i) Description af cach type of such payment Stock Options Stock Oplions RSUs RSUs

(i) General ierms of optians granted

Vesting for stock options: 38%
Inyear 1,:33%in ygar 2and
33% inyear3

Vesiing for stock aptions: 34%
in year 1, 33% in year 2 and
33kinyear3

RSUs convert 1o shates on 3rd
annlversary of the award

RSWs convert to shares on 3rd
anniversary of the award

{ii!) Méthod of sexiement (e.g, whethet in cash or
tequrty}

Siock Optlens can seltie in
equity or cash. Al exercises
during this periad were settled
In cash

Stock Opions can settie in
aquity or cash. All exercises
during this period were seltted
In cash

RSUs settle in shares only

RSUs sattle [n-shares only
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Employec share-based payment plans: {Continued)

T \
§
This table Inéludes both stock optlans enly ; 3)-Mar-20 33-Mar-19 31:0Mar-20 31-Mar-19 {|
|
i i
3 } l
{B) Number and weigited average exerase prices of i N Rs. {Par Unit F ps T N Rs: {PerUni o
share aptivns for each of tre fellowlng groups of options: | 0 - (Per Unit) 2 - {Per Loit} o : {PerUnit) i O3 | Rs. [Per Unitt '
| *. i
— - - -
{i) outstandirg at the'beginning of the perios ) “ I
2,862 5,866 59 2,852 5,865.34 436 4,157.68 i 258 B.504.29 I
! !
(ihtransferred out during the perlod o
2,862 6,392.32 3 = 436 5,670.28
[
(ilijtransferied in during the periad I 1
i - | 348 5,670.28 -
i
{iv] grasited during-the perioc 1
| = - - 148 12,793.68 178 10,249.66 |
i ! :
(v} forleitea during the period
(Wi} exercised duslng the period )
= = - 153 13,004.78 - =
{vil) expired gurinf the period
|viii) putstanding at the end of the petiad
] s 2,862, 5,866.84 344 11,952.33 436 5,157.68
{ix} eierclsable at the eng of the perlod )
) - - 2,561 5,912.00 - - -
1
31.-Mar-20 31-Mar-15 i 31-Mor-20 31-Mar-12
{€} 1) Far share options exercised during the perlod, I
idisclose the weighted average share price atthe dateof
exereine |
- - o - 153 13,004.78 -
§
{i1) if options were exercised on a regular basis
thraughoutthe period, disclose the weighted average
share price during the period
31-Mas-20 31-Mar-19 31-Map-20 31-Mp18
Na. Rs. (Per UnTt} No. Rs. {Per Unit] No. s, (Per Unit) Na. Rs. (Per Unlt)
(D} For share opridns gutstanding at the end of the 1
period; - . . - . -
{i) The range of ‘exercise prices and welghred average
price for remalning contractual jite - - 7,862 5,866,864 344 11;,852.33 %36 9,157.68
1
" i
I(ii) ${ the range.of exerclse price Is wide, the outstanding
|optiahs shall be divided into ranges that are meaningful - i P 3
Efor assessing the number and timing of additionat shares _L i

For corvenience, amounts in (ndian Rupees in Note 26,42 represents US doliat amount translated st Mazch 33, 2020 rate of fis. 7533 = US dallor £.0C and at Mateh 31, 2019 s, 63,189 = US dollar 1.00.

Amouht tepresents per share value
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Share based payments expendlture;

Share based payments expense [Included in Note 26.13: Employee Benefit:Expense) recogmised during the year represents the difference betwaén market vatue of equity shares as at the grant date and

market value ofequity shares as al the exerclse date.

26.14 Net Galn / (Less) On Fair Value Changes

Aein lakhs

Pariculars

Asat March 31,
2020

As ot March 31,
2019

{A}Net Cain / [loss) on financral instruments at fair vajue through nrotit or loss

5
|
|
|
1

{i) On trading partfoio

- Investmems

Denvatives

Others

1354:45)

L{ii)Qn financial Instrutents designated at fale value through prafis of lass

(B).Others

{C) Total Net pain/iloss) on fair value changes

|154.45)

{D} Fair. vdlue changes -

|i} Realised

1} Unreslised

{154.45)

Toral Netgaln/{loss) an falr valoc changes

{154.45)

26.15 Flnancial aséots and Itabilities by category

it

The carrying value of linancial instruments by categories as at March 31, 2020 is as follows:

A in lakhg

Particulars Fair value Falr Value Derivative Derlvative Amontised cost Total Corrying
through Profit|through Other |insirumentsin  |Instroménts not In Vslue
or loss Comprehens  |hedglag hedging
ive Incoma relatlonship relatlonship

Financlal Assels:.

Cash and cash equivalents . - - 8.024,42 2,024.42
Bank balarice otherthan (3} above - 0,59

Recelvables- Trade recéivables - 266,44

Loans 23304548

Other fir jal asspis = - 7 66.62
| Total - - - 241,403.55 241,403.55
Finanélal Liabliltles: R

Deriyative finany 154.45. . . 154.45
Pavables

-Trade Payable - . . - 1:143.60 1,143.60
Debt Secutities - - . 109.119.70 109,119.70
Borrowings (Other than Debt securities) - - - . $5;507.90 85.507,90
Lease llabilities . = 270,98

Other financial liabilities - - 467.28

Total 154.45 = - - 196,509.456
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i

Financial assels and llabllitiés by category: (Continued)
The carrying value of financial Instrurpents by citegories as at March 31, 201% is as follows ©

fgintakhs

Fanl:ulwi | Fale value Fair anuc“ | Derlvalive F Oerlvative Amortised cost E Tolal Carrying
|tl\rou1:h Profit |through Other llnslrumenu in  instrumeats nol in Value }
lar Loss Comprehens  [hedglng ‘hedging ) '

- —— ¢ lve theame.|rel hip irelationshlp |

Fi il Assels i ! 1 ___i_n 1

Cashand cash eauivaients - e i - 7,629.05 7,629.05 |

B2nt batance other than (3) aboyve ' ] | i 0,61 0.6%

i Trade roezivables | - T i -1 ek 18930 18930

Zoans —— i - { | - 167.609.22 167.609,22

Other linaseial azsnes R i | 4 37.83 32.83

Total o I - i . B .} 175,466.07 175:166.01

- H : B e

Financlal Uablitles: i i i

Payabies i ‘ {

Trade Payables | | ! . . 992,13 ‘99518
Debt Securities | - i = 00,622.98 80,622.98
Barrowings [Other than Debt secusiies) i - 54,744.95 54,744.95
Other financial liablHties £ 505.57 505.57
Tota) i - - - - 136,872.68 136.872.68
THie carnying value of fianc:al instfurmients by categones as at April 1, 2018 18 as follows |

Ryunlakhs

Particulars Falr value Falr Value Derivative Derivative Amertised cost Emal Carrylng
theough Profit jlhrough Olher |instruments in Insteuments not In Value
pr Loss Cainprehens  [Medping hedging

fvé Intome relationship relationship

Financiaf Assets?

Cish and eash'squivalents - - - 1,749.11 1,743.11

Bank balance other than {1) above 0.57 0.57

lid yies- Trade recetvables o - . 99.23 99.23

Loans - - - 117,851.73 117,851,723

Dther financialasssts . . - 35.11 35.11

Total - - - - 139,735,725 '218,735.75%

Flnancial Uablilitios:

Payatiley

Trade P'JE bles - - - 578.3% 576.39
Bar ings {Other than Dot securltices) - - - B7,561 91 -87.56192
e area Bl | 2 z p 37232 37242
Total - | - 88,512.43 28,512.43
FalrValue heirarchy s

I3 in Jakhs

As'at March 31,2020 i Carrylng amount ilevel 1 {ovat 2 tevel 3 {Totat

Financial Assels: { i

lLoans B 233.045 48 240,161 62 240,161.62

Total 233,095.48 . - 220,161.62 240.161.62

S |

Finantclal Liabllities: i

Derlvative financial Instrument 15445 | 154.45 154.45

Debt Securlties 109,119.70 | - 112,500.21 - ) 1350021

Bosrowings [Olher than Debt secorlties) ; 85,507.90 | - .86:911,31 1 86:911:31

Total ! 194.782.05 | 5 199,565.97 L 19956597

As-at March 31, 2019, ] Carrylng amount Level 1 Level 2 Lavel 3 Total

financial Assetx: ]

Lodins 167,609,212 . 171,332 91 17133291

[Total 167,609.22 | - - 171,332.91 171,332.91

T

Financial Liabllities: | i

Debr Securitles 20,622.98 R1,450.01 1 sLas0.01

Borrowings {Other than Deht socurities) 54,744.95 £6,355,98 i 56,358.98 |

Tofal 135.367.93 137.808.5% ] 137.808.99
T Carrying smount | 'L_e:z_r_-g =t level 2 Level 3 Total
|

117.851.73 120,126.11 120,126,11
11785173 - 120:126.11 120,126.11
o ] i I i
L 8756192 | N 5435241 i 94,352.41
87,561.92 | £4.352.41 i 9135241 |
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26.16

flnanclal assets and liabl(ities by category: {Continued)

duoted prices in an active market [Leve] 1) : This levet of helrarchy Includes financial assets that are measured by reference 1o quoted prices (Wnadjusted) in active markets for Identicat asscls ot
lisbiities,

Valuation technigue with observabie faputs (Level 2 : This level of heirarchy includes financlal aszets and llabilities, measured using Inputs other than quated prices Inchided wilktn Level 1 thal are
observable lor the asseror liabllity, etther dlrectly (e as prices) s indirectly (l.e. derived fram prices): This lavel of helrarchy Inclugde Company's over the counter {OTC) derivative contraets

Valuation technique with slgm:licant unubservatle inputs (Levei 3} 0 This level of heirarchy includes financlat assets and liabiilties measurad using ipputs that.are not basad on pbeasvable market data
{unobservable inputs) Fair values are maasured in whole or tr pan, using a valuation model based on assumptlons that are nelther suppotted by prices from observabie current markel trarsactons in
the same nstrument not dre they based on avaitable marker data,

There has tbeen no trans!er betwaen level 1, tevel 2 and lavel 3 far the year endaed March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019..

Valuatton techinlqueé usid to determine fair value of financial instrumants.

{a) Denvatives are dalr vatued usirg fair values obtained trom banks and where applicable, are classiflied in Leve! 2.

{b) The fair-value of Joans arising:from financing activities has been estimated by discounting expected cash flaws using rates at which joans of similar credit quality ang maturity would be made and
internat assumptions such as expected ceedit losses and estimated collateral value for repossessed vehclas as at March 31, 2020 and 2015 Sinte slgnificant unobservable inputs are applled in measuring
the fair value of loans arising from financing activities, they are classified In Level 3 D

Falr value of finandial assois/ liabifitics measured at amornised cost

The carrying amounds of other financial assets and other financial liabilities atherthan those disclosed in the table above valued at fevel 2 and Jevel 3 ‘are considesed to be the same as their fajr yalues
due to the short Larm maturities of instruments and no material differences in the falr value:

FInanclal Risk Review

The Cempany 15 exposed to certawn financial tisks namely creditrsk, interest rlsk, currency risk & liguidity risk: The Company's Board of Directars has averal] responsibllity for the establishment and
aversight of the Company’s risk managemant framoework. The 8oard of Directors has blished the Risk Manag 1t Committee and Assel Liability Committee {ALCO), The Hisk Management
tommittee and ALCO' 15 respqnsible for developing and monitoring risk management policles for its business and ensuring compliance with the statutory/regulatery framework of the isk management
process

The: Cowid<13 pandemic has resuited in a significant deciease in the ecunomic actvitles actass-the country, on account of nationwide Jockdown that startéd on 25 March 2020. The lockdown also
affected the company's busingds aperatlons in'the last week of March 2020. Furiher, in accardance with the RBI guidelines relating 1o ‘Covld-19 Regulatory Package' dated 27 March 2020, the Company
offered EMI moraterium to'lts.éustomers based an requests. On 22 May 2020 Rbl has-announced an extanslon of the maratorlum, the Company is currently evaluatingsthe option to bs offcred to s
custamers. Estimates and assoclated assumptions applied (n preparing these financial results, especially for determining the impairment allawance for the financial assets {Loans), are based on higtaricat
expertence and other emerging, forvard loaking factors on account of the pandemic. The Company believes that the factors tonsldered arecreasonabie under the-current circumstances The Company
has used early ingleators of moratorium and delayed payment metrles observed alongwith an estimation of potential stress on probablity of Jefault and exposure at defaull due to Covid-19 situation in
developing the cstimates and'assumptions ta assess the Impairment loss aliowance orv loans, Glven the dynamic nature of the pandemic sltwation, lﬂé’sg estimates are subject 1o yncertainty and may
be alfected by the seventy and duration of the pandermlc, In the event the Impacts are mare severe or prolonged thar anticipaled, thiswill have a corresponding mpact on the carrying vatue of financlat
assets and the financial position.

Credit risk

Creditrisk is the risk 1bat the Company will incur a lass because Its customers fail to discharge their contractual ohligations.The Company has a comprehensive framework for mopitosing credlt quality of
its retall loans primarily based an days past due monitonng at perlod end. Repayment by Individual customers and portfolio §s tracked regutarly and required steps for recoveryare aken Whrough follow
ups and legal recourse.

Exposure 1o Credit Risk

The carryng amaum of the financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure, being the total of the carrying amounl of balances with banks, Ume depasits with banks, loans arising from
financing activities, derlvative Ananelal Iastruments, trade reccivables and other financials assets

Financial'assets that afe nelther past due or impaired

Credit risk on cash and cash equlvalents and deposits with banks/ financlal iastitutions is generally low as the said depasits have been made with banks/ financial institution who have been assigned high
credit raling by Intemational/ domestic rallng agencies. Credit risk on detivative Instruments Is generally low 3s the company enters into derivalive contracts with reputed banks. None of the company's
cash equivalents, Including time deposits with banks are past due or impaired. Regarding the derivative contracts, trade receivables and other linancial assets are neither impaired nor past due. There
were no lpdications as at March 33, 2020, that defaults in payment obligations will oceue.

1) Loans arlsing from financing activities - Cred|t quality of financlal assets and Impairment loss

The carrying amount of loans represent the maximum tradil exposure aet of provisian for impairment: Laans are derived fram financing activities to custormers. The Cormpany rmostly provide joans to
retail individual customers in Aural and Semi urban aree which is of small ticket size Credit nisk for loans is managed by the Campany through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and petledic
monitorsng of the credit warthiness of Its customers to which the Company grants credit terms jn the normal course of business, Credit #isk s monitared by the ccedlt risk department of the Company's
Independent risk department/ function who have the responsibility for reviewing and managing cradit rlsk

For the Ioas financed to customers, the Company cavers/secures the credit nisk associated with the loans lended to customers by creating chatge/ bypothecation/ secw ity on the assets as mentioneni/
specified in \he loan agreement with the customers, The Cotnpany does not have a high cancentration of credit risk 16 a single customer exceeding 10% of the Company revenue fhe Company makes
the allowance for [osses on it portfolio of loans on the basls of expected futur collection from receivables, The future coflections ara estimated on the basis of past collection trend which are adjusted
far changns in currens clrcumstances as wek as expected changes in coltection on account of future with respect to certain macro economie factor.
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Tha fallowin table séts out Information sbout the-ceedit quality of financial asséts measured at amortlsed cast. The amounts i the fablg reprasent gross carrying amaunts for financial assets.

(i) toans o by Sector Hg in [akhs

Particulars AsatMarch31, |Asat March 3, As at April 1,
20 Q019 s |

Loans by Seclor o
1) Agricultural Sector 231,943.16 i 168.758.21 121,436.58
1) Constriction equinhents — 9,582.30 | 3,673.37 D
Tatat - Grass e 241,530.46 | 172,421.58 124,436.98
|Less: impaicment aligwance 5,850.48 | 2.905.08 2.086.29
ITotal Net Loans 235,679.98 | 169,636.50 119,350.15

()  Days past due mothod for cradit quality _ana}ﬁis of Loans

The table bifew shows thé credit auality and the maximum exgosure to credit sk based.on the days past due and yearend stage classification of gross carrying value of loans. The ampunts presentad.

ara grass of impairment atiowances,

Rain lakhs
|Outstandirig Grass loans As at March 31, 2020 ‘As at'March 31, 2019 As at Apdl 1, 2018
i Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Staged stage 2 Stage3 Stage 1 Staga2 Stoge 3
Days Pastdue  * R .
Current {Not past due) 186:982.26 - 137.78 142 093,38 16:28: 101,556 .61 30.33
1- 29 days 22,067.50 . 151.83 13,287.20 167.55 8.000.23 108.96
30. 59.days . 10,695.29. 37229 - _ 501136 235.87 . 3,093.33 162:99:
60- 89 days - 6,157.02 A37.35 - 2,951.73 354:45 2,284,46 -321.89
90 or more days - - 14,525.19 . - 8,313.96 - - 5 938.18
Gross Exposure 205,069.76 | 16,852:31 15,628.39 | 155,390.38 7,963.09 9,088.11 108,556.84 5317.79 656235
fig In fakhs
As‘at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2013 As at April 1, 2018
{Impalrment allowanza on loan
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3. Stage 1 Stape 2 Stage 3 Stage 1 Stape 2 Stage 3
Days Pastdie =;
Current {Not past due} 741.39; 54.11 66.31 10.41 95.87 11.77
1- 29 days 269.23 46.59 70,33 4830 67.93 31.42
30- 59 days 1R7:59 108:21 86:55 68.52 58,59 46:82
50- 89 days 168.32 125.28 84.75 100.80 71.41 91.21
30 or mare davs 4.249.58 2,268,61 1.611.77 |
Total 910.62 355.21 4.584,15 136.64 171.30 2492.14 163.80 130.00 1.792.99 |
Net Exposure 208,339.14 16,496.60 11,0442 |  155,253.74 7,791,738 6.590.97 105,393.04 5,187,729 4,765.36 |
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fi)

Lirys past dus method lor eredit quality analysls of Loans: (Continuned) Ry Ity 13khs
As at Morch 31, 2020 AssetGroup  [Days Pastdve Estimdted gross  |Expected Expected credit Carrying amount
carrylng amount |probabitity of lasses netof )
e atdefault default Tmpalrment: _l
Loss allowance moasured at 12 month expected credit |Finandal assets for which Loans Current 1B6,982.26 0.40% 741.39 186,240°37 |
losses credit risk has notincreased 1-29¢days | 22,067.50 0.77% 169.23 21,898,237
signiticantly since Iniuat i 209,049.76 0.44% 910.62 2081139.14 |
{ recognition Total 1 \
I Finaneial assets for which 1 &
i AGIEAT TR loans | _.30-59 days 10.695.29 175% 187,39 10,507.70 |
! sigmticantly and not credit 60 - A3 days £:157.02 2.73% 16832 5,988 90
m‘ S Total 16,852.31 241% 355.71 16,496.60
Loss aljowance measyted at life:time expected credi clent 137,78 35T 2411 5567
i losses o — 1-29 days 151.83 30.05% 14659 104,93
| tridit rigk has Inereased coans Zg ; :; j:w 372.24 29.07% 108.21 266 ?3
significanity and credit- : . s 43?'35 28.64% 125.26 31510
impaired 90 days and 14,529:19 29.25% 4,209,358 10.279.61
above
Total 15,628:3% 29.33% 4,584,15 11,044.28
Grand Total 241,530.46' 2.82% 5,850.48 235,679.98
fis [ Inkhs
Asat March 31, 2012 lassat Group  |Days Pastdue |Estimated gross  |Expected Expected credit Camying amount
camyingamount (prohability of losses riet of
atdefault default Impalrment
Lass allowance measured at 12 month expected credit  |Financial assets for which Loans Current 142,093.18 0.05% 66.31 142,026.37
losses eredit eisk has aot Increased 1-28 days 13,297.20 0.53% 90.33 13,226.87
stgnificantly since infual Total 155,390.38 0:09% 136.64 155,253.74
recogoltion
Fihanciat assets tor which 320 - 59 days 5,011:36 1:23% 86,55 4,524:81
tredit risk has Increased 60 - 89 days 2:951.73 2.87% 8475 2.866.98
significantly and nat credit- Tatal 7,963.09 2.15% 17130 7,791.79
impalretd
Loss allowance measured at kfe-time expected credit faans Current 16:28 63.96% 1041 B
losses Finaricial assets:far which 129 days L233 FETEN EB80 11835
credit risk has inmnase& 30-59 days 235'8_7 29.05% 6852 _157'35 :
slgnificantly and credit 60~ 80 days 354.45 28.44% 100.80 35365 |
Impalred 50 days and 8,313.96 ‘27.29% 2,268.61 6,045.35 !
ahove i
Total 9,088.11 27,48% 2,497.18 653097 |
Grind Tatal 172,441.58. 1.6% 2.805.08 169,636.50 |
s lakhs
Asat April 1,2018 AssctGroup |Days Pastdue (Estimated gross  {€xpected eredit  |Expected credit Carrylng amount
carrying amouat |loss rales |osses not of
at default Jmpairment
provision
Loss allawance measured at 12 month expected credit  |Flnancial assets forwhich Lgans Current 101,556.61 0.09% 95.87 101,460.74
Ipsses credit risk has not Inceeased 1-29 days 8,000.23 0.85% 57.93 7,932.30
slgnificantly since Inittaf Total 109;555:84 0.15% 163.80 109,393.04
recognition
Financial assets for which 3(¢-58 days 3,033.33 1,93% 58,59. 2,974.74
credit risk has increased 60 - 39 days 2.284.46 3.13% 7141 2,213.05
slgnificantly and not credit- Total $,317.74 2.04% 130.00 5,182.79
moaired
K . . laans Current 30.33 38.79% 11.77 18.56
Loss allawance measured at lite-time expected credit 129 davs T08.96 3984% 3142 7754
losses Flpanclal assel; for which 30- 55 days 162,93 28.73% 46.82 11617
priedit sk s intreqged €0- 89 days 32189 833% 9121 230,58
$lgnificantly apd eredit 30 days and 5.938.18 27 14% 161177 4,326.41
Impalred ]
above
| Total 6,562.35 27.32% 1,792.99 4,769.36
| Grand Total 121,436.58 1.72% 2.086.79 118,350.19
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{i)

Liquldity Risk

Ultimate responsiblliy far llquidity risk masagement rests with the board of divectors, which has established Asset and Llabillty Mandgement Commiitee (ALCO) for the manageient of the Company's
short, medicm and leng-térm funding and liquidity management.reguirements. The Company 'm;n'agés liquidiljt risk by maintaining adequate reservas, banking facilities and reserve borrowing facihties,
Ly cantintously monitanng fotecast and actoal cash fliws, and by motching the matunty profiles of financialassets and labllities.

Maturity analysls of Habilitles

Theabie balow set out cartying amount af financial liability accaeding to when they are expected to be settied.

As on Mareh 31, 2020 in lakhs

]"I'arli:ulms :Less than 3 Over3 Over 6 Months |Over1year upto |Over3 years upta [OverS years Total \

1 jmoaths Months upte |uplel yrar 3 years S years |

i ! & months . - !

{Financial Nabilities = :

1 [it Derivative financial Instrument 15443 i 154.85

i {a] Trade payables |

| “taral utstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 0.01 . 1 ‘ 0.01
o |

-total outstanding ues of crediiors other than 1,143.59 1,143.53

micro enterprises and small enterprises !

{b) Other Payables T 3 i
(iis} Debl securities [33.86) 30,923.02 28,295,29 49,935.25 - . 109,119.70
(iv) Borrowings (Other than Oebt securities) 16,957.90 4,100.00 5,650.00 53,800.00 85,507.90
(] Lease Nabilities - - 110.71 160.27 = - 27098

A{vi) Otheér financfal liabilities 101.75 465,53 . - 46728

Total Flnanaal |labil itles 10,165.39. 35,023.02 34,421.53 109,049.97 - - 196,663.91

As on March 31,2019 Rsinfakhs

Partlculars Lessthan 3 Over3 Over 6 Months [Over 1yearupto |Over 3 years upta |Over 5 years Total

months Months upto |upto 1 year 3years S.years
& months

| Flnanclal fiabllities
{3} Derlvatlve financlal Instrument . - -

1b} Payables )

| (i} Trade payables
~total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 1.08. - - « - - 1.08
-total outstanding dues of creditors other than 998.10 - - 292,10

micra enterprises and’small enterprises

(i)} Other Pavables ED
tiii] Debt securities {34.76) {4.57) 836.26 79.826.05 - SO=622.9§
{tv) Borrowings {Other than Debt sccunties) 8,224.95 6.840.00 10,230.00 7 3,700.00 54.744.95
tv) Lease lishilities - - - . - .
tvil Other financlal llabilities 56.80. 448.77 - - 505,57
Total Financia) flabllitios 9,246.17 6.835.43 11,515.03 105,576,058 3,700.00 . 136,872.68

I i
As an Aprif 2, 2018 Rs in lakhs
Partleulars Less than 3 Over3 Over i Months |Overlyearupto |Over 3 years upta [DverS years Total B

months Months upto fupta 1 year 3 years 5 years
6 months

Flﬂiln_dll Ilabillties
{) Derivative finantial Instrument 5 o 2 =
1ii) Payables i
(a) Yrade payables . . - -
-total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and 3.00 3.00
small enterprises
-total outstanding dues of creditors uther than 575.39 - S7Sj39
micro enterprises cnd small enterprises - -

13 Other Payables i B R : L
({1 Deb securties : il 3 | S (T : :
(¥} Barrowings (Other than Debt securitles) 7,041.92 7.77000]  32.770.00 33.530.00 Ceasoon] T T ense1n
(V) Lease liabilties . . = B N —
[vi} Other finzncial liabillties 26,31 345,851 - 372.12
Total FInanclal liabilities o i 7,646.62 7,770:00 = 33,115.81 33,530.00 §,450.00 - 89,512.42
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(W}

Maturity Analysls of Assets and Ltabill

ties

The table below:shows the maturity analysis of 3ssets and liabilitles according to when they are expacted to be recovered or sattled

<. {n lakhs
Partleulars 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-13 N . 1-Apras
Current Mon- Current {Total Current {Non- Current_|Total Current Non- Current Total
ASSETS
Financlal Assets
(1)_Cashand cash equivaients 8,024.42 - 8,024:42 7.629.05 . 7,649.05 1.749.11 . 1,749:11
(1i] Bank balance other than |a) above 0.59 - 0.59 0.11 0.50, 061 0.07 a.50 0.57
{lit) Receivables- Trade receivables 266.44 - 26544 189.30f - 159.30 99.23 - 99 23
v} Loans = 94,135.02 138,810.46 232,045.48 €5,457.90 9B.151.32 167,609.22 47,314 56 70.532.17 117,651.723
™ Other financial assets 38.81 27.81 66.62 - 37.83| 37:83 . 35.11 35:31
Total financlal assets 102,465.27 138,938.27 241,403.55 77.276.36 98,189.55' 175,466.01 49,162.97 70,572.78 119,735.75
4 e e
Non-financlal Assets il i S—
{l) Current tax {Net} “415.16 315,16 - 234,711 23871 : 32.53 32:43
{il} Deforred tax assets (net) - 2,011,386 2,111,36 1,327,311 1,327.11 ¢ 1,028.71 1,028.71
(i} Property, Plant and Equipment e - 186,20 185,20 132.76] 132.76 | 91.98 53.98
| liv) Capital worf:-in-progress . 36,72 36.72 - 138 135 ) 211 211
1 {4} Right of Use Assets . 260.05 260.05 B g - . : .
!fvi} QOcher Non Nnancial assets 711.12 - 71112 342.551. -| 347.55 197.67 - 192.67
{
| Taial Non-findncla assets 711712 2,000,438 3,720.61 347.55 1,695.93 2,043.48 192.67 1,155.23 1,352,90
:'-'-‘-Hﬁ-'-*—-*'w‘— T —— - +
'_Tn{aFAssct: 103,176.39]  141.947.76 .245,124.16 77.623.9) 95,885.58 177,509.48 49,360.64 71,728.01 121,088.65/
Liabillties
Financial liabliities
{i] Derwative finanelat Instrment 154.45 15445 - . - -
(il Payables o )
() Trade payables - - - -
-total outstanding dues of rm.cro' 001 . 0.01 108 ¥ 1.03 300 ] 2.00
enterprises and small enterprises | R
-to0tal outstanding dues'of creditars
other than micro enterprises and small 1,143:59 - 1,143:59 998 10 993,10 57539 575.39
enterprlses ' |
I e T T e . i e |
-tata! outstanding dues of micro
erzerprises and - - : - 7 - 7
-total outstanding dues of cieditors
other than micro enterprises and small s -
enterprises = . - = i
. |
{11} Debt securities 59,184.44 48,935,26 109,119.70 796.93 79,826.05 80,622.98 ' ¥ .
[V} Borrowings [Other than Debt securl 26,707.90 58,800.00] B5,507.90 25,294.55 29.450,00 54,744.95 42,581.92 39,980.00 37.561.92
{v} Lease ltabilities 110.71 160.27 270.58 - - - 5 e .
{vi) Other Nnanctal habilitles 467,28 | 46728 505,57 - 505.57 37112 - 37212
Tomal Finandsl liabilities B7.613.93| 109,049.98]  186.663.01|  27596.63|  108,275.05 136,872.68 48.532.43 39,980.00 88,512.43,
Non-financlal llabilities
(i} Current tax liabilites [Net] - . . 424 - 1,52 -
(ii) Provisions 81.88 472.23 554.11 64:39 3290.19 34.52 271.98
(iif) Other Non financial llabillties 98.95' . 98.95 73.76G s 48 16 -
Tatal Nan fnandal llabllities 160.83| ar2.23 653.06 14239 390,18 . 84.20 271.98
Total Uablliiles 87.794.76] 10952221  197316.97]  27739.02]  109,666.23 137,405.25] 48.616.63| 40,751,98 88.868.61
Net [ 47.807.19 40,104.29) | 37,220.04
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4}

m

)

Market Risk
Market.Risk |s the risk that the fair value or Tuture cash flows of-financial instruments wilt fluctuate due ta changes in market variables:such as interest rales, forelgn exchange rates, etc. The objective
of matket risk maragement is 10 manage and control market rlsk expasures within acceptable parameters, while maximising the return.

Exposiire to Interest rate risk
ingerest rate risk (s the £k that the falr value or future cash Nlows of a financial Instrement will Auctuate because of changes 1h market interest rases. The Company loans and berrewings are at flxed
(nterestrate hence any changé i market interest rale vall not have Impact on statément of profit and loss

Expasure {o Fareign currency risk
The Company undertakes transactions denominated in foresgn currencies and consequitntly, exposures to exchange rate Nuctuatons arise, Exposurc to cutronty disk ralates prinanly 2o the Company's
Intergempany tmnﬂ::lan'_s denomipated In a dilferent tunency from the Company's funcuanal currency

The fuctuation ih fornign cutrency exchange rales may havit poteatial impuct on the statement.of profit and'loss and ather comptihensive Incame and equity, whare sny transaciian relrrences more
than e currency o‘i"uvhrré'ass_ulsl!iabi!.ms ara denominatid In a currency other than the functional currency of the Company, The Campany evihiates the impulct of tntrign exthange rate fluctuatians
by assessing [ts.exposure to exchange rate risks.

The fallowing tables defonstiate the sensitivity to 3 reasdiably passile change in LS, EUR, AUD arid THB exchadge raies, with 3l other variatiles held constant. The impact on 1he Cdmpahy’s profit

befare taxi§ due to changes in the fair value of rohetary assets and llabdities. The Company's exposure to other forelgn currencics is not material.

The.cariying ambunt of Campany’s forcign:cumency denominated manalary assets and mongtary liabilities at the end of the reporting pariod are as follows -

R In lakhs
As on March 31, 2020 As on March 31, 2019
i b4 out ilng in LNR Amounty sutstandlng In INA

uUsp EUR TBH AUD usp EUR TER
Trade Payatles {39842} {5.16} - {20.31) {444.50) {2.78) -
fradé Recelvables 271,94 - 51,00 - 8911 . 4093

fis I lakhs
Currency Change In Etfect on profit
rate belore tox

31-Mar-20 uso 112:65)

EDR 10% / <10% 10.52)

THB 5:10

AUD {2.03)
31-Mar.18 ub {35.54)

EUR 10% / :10% {0:28]

THE 4.82

Ih management's opinion, tha-sensitivity analysls does not represent the inherent foreign exchange nisk because the exposure at the-end of the.ceporting period does noi reflect the exposure during the
year,

ﬁe(iva(iye FInancial [ns\rumenss
The table betaw shows the falr valies of desivative finandial insiruments fecorded as assets oc liabilities together with their notlonal smounts:

i In dnkhs
Derlvatives held for Rlsk managerment nurposes As ot Morch 31, 2020
Natlonal Falr vajue- Falr value- Change In rate |Effect on prafit
amount assets abllities before tax
Farward Contracts USDE]_.‘ZO . INR 15445 | 10%/-10% 15.45
Total UsD 181.20 - INR 154:45
Capltal Management

The Company's capltal management: strategy is 1o effuctiwly detemtiine, raise-and‘depley €apital 50 as ta create value for its sharchalders, The same ls done thraugh @ mik of elthier dquity, and/or
comblnation of shert term/lang term debr as may beappropriate. )

The Company ks subi|ect ta the caphal adequacy requliements of the Reserve Bank of India (RBI), Under RBI's eapital adenuacy guidclines, the Compary is required to maiptain a capital adequacy ratio
consisting of-Tier.I-and Tler Il Capital,

The minimum capital ratio as prescribed by RB! guidelines and applicable ta the Company, consisting of Tfer I and Tier Il capital, shalf not be fess than 15 percent of its aggregate risk weighted assetson
balance sheet and af tisk-adjusted value of off-batance sheet The Company has complied with all regulatory requirements related capital and capital adequacy ratios as prescribed by RDI )
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Olsclosures as requirad In terms of Annex | in accordance with Master Direction DNBR. PO, 00B/03,10.118/2016-17 dated Seplember 01, 2016 updated as an 17th Feb 2020 Issued by Reserve Bank
61 tndta (RBI) (Annex It)

26,17 Capltal to Risk Assels Ratlo (CRAR)

As perIND AS As per |IGAAP :

Sr. No. Particulars 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19 1-Apr-18 31-Mar13 1:Apr-13 i
e |

3 CRAR {%) 19.33% 22.70% 26.04% 2195% 25.18% !

{ 2 CRAR - Tier ) capita! {5} 18.92% 22:62% 25,90% 20 70% I 23.93% {
1 ]

1 3 CRAR ’ Tier Il Capltal {3) 0.39% 0.08% 0.14% 1,25% I 1.25% |

26,15 lavestments
This seétion is Not applicable to the Company gince there are no invesiments

26.19 Derivatives

A)

B}

26,20

26,21

26.22

2623

Forward Rato Agreement / Interest Rate Swap

fs i lakhs

Padticblars As at March 31, As at March 31;
2020 2019
) Tha notfonal principal of swap agreenents
o Vosses ihich would be incurred If couriterparties fatied to fullill their obligalions Lindér the agezements | .
(i) Collateral required by tha applicable NBEC upon entéring lnta swaps | s
(iv} Concentration of credit risk arising from the swaps $
v) The fair value of the swap book @
Exchange Traded Interest Rate {IR) Derlvatives
This section (s Not applicable to the Company
Disclostires on Risk Exposure fn Derivatives
Qualitative Disclosure 13 In lakhs

Pacticulars :u:ren.cy ll:n:s'réslt' lRam
) Derivatlves [Notiona] Principal Amount]. USD 185 20
Farhedging
1y Marl;d 1o Market Positions [1)
Assel {+) B T
Liability () o
[(1] Credit Exposure [2)
{iv) Unhedged Exposures INR154.45

Disclosures relating to Securltisation

This section |5 Not applicable to the Company

Detalls of Flnanclal Assets sold to Securitisatlon / Reconstruction Company for Asset Reconstruction

This section [s Not applicable to the Company

Detalls of Asslgnment transactions undertaken by applicable N8FCs

This section Is Mot applicable to the Company

Détalls of non-performing tinoncial assets purchased f sald

This section Is Rot applicable ta the Company
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26:24 Assot Liablity Manageiment Maturlty pattern of certain items of assets and liabllties

26.25

26126

26,27

26.28

As on March 31,2020 fe in lakhs
[ T
] .
1dayto30/31 | Overone lover'l_ months| . o“,’ 3 Over 6 months | Overl year upto | Dver 3 years upto Be
days (one monthte 2 ! upto 3 months months upta C— 3vesrs S Veirs Dver 5 years Total
month) months 1% 6 months PR YE0r o i vea, :
p— — i 'S 1
Liabllities |
! BN | 7 i !
Borravsings from banks 13;107.90 1,550,00 | 2,300.00 4,100.00 ; 5,650.00 | S8,800,00 85,507.90 I
1}
{Market Borcowlags - anesn3z ! 2833622 49,826.16 109,119.70 |
| i
{Asscts ;
i ] ; |
Adyances * 3.235.56 4,492 08 14,82062 | 27,670.43 46,812 33 115,275.01 28,405,77 234,331.8) |
|
e T 1
Investments - . - - - - ;
~ Advarices.include amount shaivn In Note 7 axcluding staga | and siage Il provision
As on March 31,2019 A3 in lakhs
1dayto30/32 | Overane’ . Quer3 R py— .
days: [orie month'ts 2 3"::: :::::: months upta ovue :: ;“::s Ovc'r;' y::r:"'plo Q“r:_ v:::: UPID Over 5 years Total
month} manths Re22ima & months IO, ye: yéars !
Uakliitles
BorrowIngs from banks: 1,624,95 1,250.00. 5,350.00 6,840.00 10,230.00 25,750.00 3,700.00 54,744,95
Market Borrowings - 30:58 906.16 79,686.24 8D,622.98
Assets
Advances 3,781.17 5,641.06 10,438.63 18,211.83 31,506,859 82,437.25 15,896.50 4.03 167,917,26
Invéstments - 5 "

* Adbvances Ingluda smount shown In Note 7 escluding stage | and stags Il previsicn

Expasures :

Thereare 00 exposure-ta capital tnarket and ré3l estate sector during the year ended 31 March 2020 3nd 31 March 2029,

Details of financing of parent tompany produycts
The principal business of the Company is providing !inance for the purchase of farm equipment manufactured and sold by John Deere indla Private Limited and for the construction equipment
manufactured and sold by Wirtgen india Private Limited:

Detalls of Single Barrower Limht (SGL) / Gioup Berrower Limit {GBL) exceeded by the applicable NBFC:
During the year ended 31 Ma rch 2020'and 31 March 2019, the Company's eredlt exposiire to singla barrowers and group borrowers were within the |(mits prescribed by the RBI;

Reglstratlop obtalned from other finandal sector regulators :

Hegulators Registration Number
FIU- Financial Intelligence Urit FINBF12755
RBi- Reserve Baink of Indla N-13.02027.
CKYC- Central KYC {Know Your Customer) 20192000001626

Disclosure of Pepalties i

d by RBtand other regulators ¢

26:28 There has been no penalty Imposed by RBI'and other rejuiatars during the financlal year ended'31 March 2020 dnd 31 March 2013,
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26,30 Ratings assigned by credit rating agencles and migration of ratings :

Ouring the year 2019-20

Particulars ‘Commercisl Paper
(i) RatingAssigned CRISIL AL+ CRISIK AL+ i[lCﬁA) A+
(i) Dateof Rating 2-Mar-20 5-Fib-20 {7 fen-20
(1 Rating Valid up to 60 Calendar Days 60'Calendar Days 20 Days
ivh Name of the Rating Agency CRISIL L1d CRISIL Ltd HCRA Uid ;
) |Amoumt P5,60,000 lakhs 75.60,000 fakhs R5.30,000 fakhs |
Particulars ! Term Loans NCD —,I
I o ok RIS I
i Ratirig Assighed CRISIL AAASSTabIE (Reaffirmed CRIEIL AAA/Stable ; :
0 e alleASA L B e AAA/Stalie
{u} Date of Rating 2-Mar 20 2-Mar-20 2-Mar-20
{iiy Rating Valid up to 180 Days 180 Days 180 Days
{Iv} Rame of the Rating Agency CRISIL Ld CRISfL L1d CRISIL Led
) Amount Rs.27,000 lakhs Rs.50,000 1akhs Rs.40,000 lakhs
During the year 2018- 19
Particulars Commerclal Paper
(it Rating Assigned CRISILAL+ CRISIL AL+ CRISIL AL+
i) ‘Date af Rating 18-Maiy-18 5-0c1-18 21-Dec-18
‘. o  Calepdar da
(i} Rating Nalid up to 60 Calendar days 60 Calendar days 0 Calendandays
fiv} Name of the Rating Agency CRISIL Lid CRISILLtd CRISIL Lud
v |Amount A5.30,000 lakhs Rs,80,000 lakhs Rs.50,000 lakhs
Partlculars Tetm Loans NCD
= : o L1 ) CRISIL
0 Rating Asslgned CRISILAAA/Stable (Reaflirmed, CRISIL Stable (Réalfirmed,
0 s s AAA/Stable {Reaffirmed) AAA/stable (RéaHirmed) RAA/Stable
{10 Date of Rating 10~1ah-19 10-Jan-19 25-Feb-19]
{iil) Rating Valid.up to 1EQ Pays 1 Year 1 Year
{iv) Name of the Rating Agency CRIS|L Ltd CRISIL Ltd CRISIL Ltd
o) lamount Rs 27,000 fakhs Rs.50,000 lakhs Rs.40,000 laxhs

3631 Remunemtion of Directors

The remuneration to ditectars has been disclosed in Point 25,06
26.32 Net Profit or Loss for the periad, pifor period items and changes In accounting policies :+ NIL
26:33 Revenue Recognition - Piease refer Significant accounting policle no. 2.6

26.34 Ind AS 110 -Consolidated Financlal Statements (CFS}
This section is Not applicable to the. Campany
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Notes forming part of financial statements

26.35 Provislon {or Contingent(es:-

— Asin ke
Particutars 31.Mar-20 31-Mar-19
Breakup of Provision and con(lng‘enél_es shown under the héad Expenditure in Profit and lass Account
Provision for Deprectation on {nvestment @] B
Provision for.Stage 1l 2,087.00 704,16
Provision made Lowards income tax 1,641.00 1,434 21
Otker provision and conlingencies -
Leave encashmens 118.23 9249 1
Gratuity 5841 20,11
B et —
Provision for Stage Vand Jf 958,40 1412
26,36 Draw Down irom Reserves
There has beer no draw down from the Statutory Reserves under section 45-C of The Reserve Bank.of India Act, 1934, lor.the year ended 31 March 2020 and 2019
26:37 Concentration of D I3, Ady Exposure and NPA's
Concentration of Advanpcés:
(A fs I lakhy
Paiticulars 31:Mar-20
Total Advances to twenty largest borfowers 6,926.11
Pescéntage of Advanices to twenty largest borrowers to Tatdl advances 2.87%
Concentratloh of Exposures:
(B} A5 i lakhs
Particulars 31-Mar-20
Totil Expelure to twenty largest borrawers / customers £,926.11
|Percentage of Advanices to twenty largest borrawers / custamérs to Total Exposure of the applicable NBFC.on borrower/Customers 287%
Concentration of NPAs
(c) 15 in Jakhs
Particulars 31-Mar-20
Total Exposure to top four NPA accourits 17574
{D} Scctor- wise NPAs
s oy 1gkhe
Percentage ol
5 NPAs to Total
Sr No. Sectar ¢ o
Advances In that
Sectar
1 Agriculture & allled activitles 6.74%
2 tASME
3 Corparate Derroviers
4 Services
5 Unsecured personal Loans
6 Auto Loans
7 Olher personal 1oans

o

9
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Notes forming part of flnanclaf statements

aae dad

Movement of NPAS s in lakhs
Particulars T o 31-Mar-20 “31Mar29|
[i) Net HPAs to Net Advances (%) 4.-69%. 3.89%
a (u_:} Movement of NPAS:(Gross) i - - — 7
a) Opening balance 9,088:11 6,562:25
b) Additions duringthe year 11,318.62 6,406.53 |
<) Reductions during the year (4,778.34) (3,880.77)5
d) Closing batance. T ’ 15,628.39 9,088 11 ]
iy taovement of Nét NPAs
a) Opening balance 6;520.97 4,769.3¢
b) Additions during the year 1,302.00 4,642.72
) Reductions during the year (3,248.73) {2,821.11)
dj Closing halance - 13,044:24 6,590.97
{i) Movement of provisions for NPAs {excluding provislans on standard-Assels)
a) Cpening balance 2,497.14 | 1,792.93
“_h) Provisidns made during the Year - 3,416.62 1,263.81
c) Write-olf/ write-back af Excess provision {1,329.64) {1.055.85)
d) Closing.balance 4,584,185 2,497.14
26.38 Overseas Assets {for those with Joint Ventures and Subsidlarjes abroad)
This section is Not applicablé 1o the Company
2639 off-balance Sheat SPVs s ed
This sectlon Is'Notapplicabla 1a the-Company
26.40 Disclasures of Complalntss
Clstamdr Complaints
5r.No Parllculars 31-Mar-20
a} Na, Of Complalnts pending'at the beginning of the year 5
b) No. of complaints received during the'yvear 73
] No, of complalnts redressed durlng the year 75
d) No; af complaints pendingiat the.and of tha year 3
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26:41 pisclosures as required in terms of Annex [ In accordance with Master Olrectian ONBR. PD. 008/03.10.215/2016-17 dated September 03, 2016 updated as on 17th Fabi 2020 Issued by Reserve Bank

of Ind}a (581}
Lizbllléles side ¢ Rs InYakhs
Amount Amount )
Parilculars Qulstanding asat | Overdue 3sof
31 March 2020 31" March 2020
1 Loans and advances avalied by the non-banklng tinanclal jany Inclustve of Interost accrued thereon but riot gaid:
Qebentures | Sectired !
(3}
i i+ -}
i Unsecured” 80,957.33 ¢
. {80,936.74) t-)
{other than faking within the meaning of puthc depostis) -
I-] 1)
X Deferred Credits -
(b} !
= [
@ | Térm Loans '61,153.63 -
c N
{54,744.95) (-l
@ Inifer corparate loans and horrawing . -
) "
- Commerdal Paper”* 30,000.00 .
e
8! t
(0] Publie Depasits -
Qther Loans - g
ECB 12,827.66 4
te) {4
- Wirking capttal loan 11,526.6)
3] ()
* Loan amount |s excluding.unamortised debt cost
** Commercial papers at gross value !
2 Break-up at (1}() above {Qutstznding public deposits inclusive of Interest accrued there on but not pald): |
i 1n the form of Unsecured debentures
a
{4 [
; Y s —
1n the form of partly secured debentures{ e, debentures where there Ts a shortfaltin the vahie of securicy -
L : : ures ]
{4 [0]]
Other.public deposits 5 B
) p Po: i
1} L)
Note: Figlres in the bratkets represents figures for previousyear
fly in lakhs
Assets sie r
. | Amount outstanding as at
particulars | 31 Maréh 2020
3 Break-up of Loans and Advances Including bills cecclvables (other than those Included in (4} helow} ¢
(3 Secured ( l
{h} Unisecurcd “
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a Break up of Leased Assets and stock on hirc and other assets caunting towards AFC dctivities i
|
(i) Lease astets Induding Joase renlals under sundry. debtors @ !
al
(a) Finangial Ja2se |
|
b} Operating lcase :
S | — .
{in} Stack on hite including hise chaeges undar sundry debtors: ]
fa} Assets on hire
o
[b)  [Aepossessed Assets i }
D) |Other ioans cownting towards ATE actvilies i
943.20!
(a} Loans where assets have becn repossessed e e e T T
(633.38)
237,852.74,
h b
(b} Loans other than (a) above {169,780.56)
5 Iageat-up of Investments:
Current investments:
1 Quuted ;
(it Shares ¥
! {4
ta} Equity ( e
)
b Preforencn B
(i Dobentures and Bands :
[B)
(i} Units el mytual funds ( 1
{tv} Gouerniment Securitios i
2]
{v) Others [plense spocih |
%)
2) Unquoted :
i) Shares i
i : t
2 tqul .
{al auky 4
{b) Prelterence ( ;
(i Debentures and Bands l;
(i)} {units of mutual funds ‘ l
{iv} Government Securities ‘ l
{v) Others {please specify) )
Lang Term investments :
1) Quated :
(i} Shares ’
()
a} Equil .
( quity 8]
() Ipretorance ( ;
:r
{t} Pehigntures and Bonds X }!
{0} Upits of moutual funds ( ’
() Government Securities HI
- ]
{v} Otbers {please specify) ‘:
! )
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5 Braak-up of Investmants:
Long Term Investments
2) Uy uu‘.ud_ H
[b] Shares -
1=}
{a) Equity ” ;
B
{o) Pieferance
= 8!
{ii} Debentures and Bonds (_;
[{I5] Units af mutuat'fonds ( }
| i B i ] -
[{)] iGnv.elnmepr Securities o
f 1 —
v ;mh'ers, {please. specify) g
8 Borrower. groupawise classificatlon of assels financed as i {3) and }4} ahove:
Rs In lakhe
. Amount net of previslons
‘Categary T
Secured Unsecured Tatal
1} jRelated Partins
(A} Subs(diaries l " ]
] 5} )
{6} Companies In the same group f 3 "
I+ ) )
(c} Other-related parties 3 y )
{4 8] (-}
21 Qther than related parties 238.?95.96 : 238,895.96
{170,414.30) {4 {170,414.30§
238,895.96 - 238,895.96
Total .
{170,414.30) {-) 1%70,414.30}
MNote: Figures In the brackets repretents figuras for previous year
7 Investor groug-wise classification of all Jnvestments (current ‘and long teem) [n shares and securites: (both quoted and unquoted):
o ) ) ' - Rs'In fakhs
Category Market Value/::e;:‘:g P or fale value Baok Value (Net of Provislons)
1) Relatod Parllas
Subsidlaries B 9
a p
(a) {-} )
{b) Compantes in the same group - 4
) 1} [0
© Other rélated partles - B
t! ()
2 Othar than related partles . -
S < | S 9]
Total - -
1 £)

Note: Figures

in the brackets represents figures for previous year
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— . 4
) Olher Informatian Rs. in lakhs
Particulars Amount
0] Gross Non-Perfarming Asiets
(al Related parties ]
8
. . 15,628.39
(3} QOther than refated parties
{9,088 1)
{ii) t‘iet Naon-Rerforming Assets
{a) Related parties
' ]
A 11,084.24
(b} Other than related parties ;
{6,590.97)
i) Assets acquired in satlifactian of deby '
)

Mote: Figures In the hrackets represents figures (or previous yoar

26.42 Liquidity fisk fr k 35 per Appendix | of DOR.NBFC (PD) CC. No.102/03,10.001/2018:20 dated ath November 2019
{l}  Funding Coricentration based on significant countcrparty (both deposits'and borrowings}
R tn lakhs
% of Yexal % of Tatal |
Sr. No. Number of Significant Counterparties Amount deposits Llabllities
1 9 195,265.05 : 9.66% |

* Borrowings exclude accured interest, unamortized debt issuance cost and unamontized discount on Commercial papers

(1 Top20large.deposits famount in X Lakhs and % of total dépasits) : Not Applicable

{i) Top:10 borrowings amountIn.< Lakhs and % of total borrownngs)

Hs In likhs

Amount % of Total
Borrowings

195,265:45 100.00%

(vl Funding Concentration based on signtficant Instrument/product Rsiniakhs
Sr.no Name of the Instrumient/product Amount % of Tatal
. : Ylabilitles
1 Terin Loan 73,765.45 30,100
2 WCDI, 11:500.00 4.65%
3 Non-tonvertible debentures 80,000.00 22.64%
4 relat papers 30.000.00 12.24%
195,265.45




John Deere Financial India Private Limited
Notes forming part of financial statements

\2}

26.43

Stock Ratios
Commereial papers as a % of total pubilic funds, total liabiities and total assets
) Rs In lakhy
Srno | Name of the lastrumient/product Amount 5 al Total: % of Total % of Total % of Total Asséts
| publicFunds  |Liabilities Uablives
{excluding Eq. and
| Rezervp)
{Commerctal papers |Gross of unamortised discount) o i 3000000 | _1s.36% | 122850 15.20% _1rawl
Non-convertible debentures {anging! maturity of [ess than ane year) as 3 % of iosa! public funds, tofal tiabiities and total assets
Rsir takhs
Snno | Name of the Instrument/product Amount % of Total % of Total 1% of Tota} 1% of Total Asscts E
j Publlc Funds  {Llabilities Liabllities { f
i (excluding £q. and '
| Reserve)
1 iNon convertitle débantures 1 i _
Other short-toem llabilitics, of any as a % of tota! public funas, totad abilities and total assels
Rsén lakhs
Srino Name of the Instiument/proditct Amount % of Total % of Total % of Total % af Tota| Assets
Public Funds  }labilitles Liabllites
(excluding €q. and
|Reserve|
1 WCDL 11,500.00 5.89% 4:69% 5.83% 4,69%
2 Non-canuertible debentures- becoming due within nextJd year 30,000.00 15:36% 12.26% 15:20% 12.24%
3 Term Loans-becoming dueivithin néxt 1 year 14,900.00 2.63% 6.08% 7.56% 5.08%
Template for Disclosuré In Notes ta Financlal Statements with reference to clrcular ng,ABI/2019:20/170 DOR (NBFC).CC.PD.10.109/22.10.106/2019:20 dated 13 March 2020
fis i fakhs
asset Grass Carrying Loss Allowances Oifference
Asset Glassification as per ABI Norms classificarion Amount as per (Provislons) as Net carcying Provisions reguired butwcr:n.lr?di\s
as per Ind AS ind AS required under  [Amount as per IRACP norms 109 pravisians
103 Ind A5:109 and IRACP norms
{1 12} (31 (41 (s)={3) - (&) (6! {7)= (4)- (6)
Performing Assets
Saget 209,049,76 910.62 208,139.14 836.20 74.42
Standard -
Stage 2 16,852.31 355.71 16,496.60 67.41 288:30
Sub-totai 225,902.07 1,266.33 224,635,749 30361 362.72
Non-Performing Assats (NPA)
Substandard Stage3 13,531.51 3,873.60 9,657.91 1,353.15 2,520.45
Doubtful - up 1o 1year Stage 3 1,317.39 34704 870,55 263.52 183.52
1o years Stage 3 779.29 263.51 515.78 233.79 29.72
More than 3 years Stage 3 -
Subtarat for doubrful 2,096.88 710.55 1,3B6.33 497.31 213.24
b=es
Loss Stage 3 B
Subtatal far HPA 15,626.39 4,58415 11,034.24 1,850.46 2,733.69
Stagn 1 -
Other items such a5 guarantees, loan cammitments, etc. which are in the ccope of Ind AS
109 but not covered under curfent Income Recognitian, Asset Classification and|Stage 2
{Provisioning (fRACP) norms  —
Stage3
Suhtotal '
Stape 1 209,049.78 910 62 203,139.14 ! 836:20 74.42
) Stage 2 16,852.31 35571 16,496,606 67 31 288.30
Total
Stage 3 | 15,628,329 6,584,15 11,044.24 1,850.46 2,733.69
T
Total ! 241,530 496 5,850.48 235,679,98 i 2,758.07 3,096.51
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26.44 Dlsclosure In Notes to Fl fal § with ref e ta Para 10 of clrcular no R81/2019-20/220 DOR.No.BP.BC.63/21.04.048/2019-20 dated 17 April 2020
Amounts In overdue categortes, where the moratorium/deferment was ded
o QR —e s S O . L1 ...
Particulary | Amounts
| e e CT—— DR - . - | .
|Instaliment amount far which matatarium is vatended . o R o _ 5,953.38
[Qutstanding Llogn —_— = [ 39642
'f(g!’:_;.'_\:_"::_:_\_w argdnt whise asset glaslication berefits jo eatendod — == = Rs i Lukdis
(8 i Y ]
) Farticulars Numbas of 'GL‘[‘-L‘I"\dIﬂI} Loan
[cantocts |
Emsificaticn benel extonded — S —— T Tl e
Provisions made during the Q4FY2020Q In terns of paragraph S of clrcular Rsin Lakhs
(€} |fartieulars Amount
Pravisian held for Substandard assets 482,57
Provisions adjusted during the respective accounting periods agalnst slippages and the resldual pravistons in terms of paragraph 6 of circular : Rs in Lakhs
{0} |Particulars Amount
Provision Ad)usted during the ac ing period NIL
26.45 In accordance with the RBY notification No. DNBS.PD.CC. No. 256/03.10,042/2011-12 dated March 2, 2012, No fraud was detected and reported duting the itnanclal year ended 34 March 2020 (31
March 2019 -NIlj
26.46 The C y has blished a system of mai 1ce of inf and d as required by the transfer pricing legislation under Section 92-92F of the incame Tax Act, 1961 The Company isin

the process of updating the documentation for the Ninancial year 2019-20. The management is of the oplnion that its International transactions are at arm's length and accordingly the aforesald
legisiation will not have any Impacl on the financlal statements, particularly on the amount of tax expenses and that of provision for taxation.
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